





TK-8 Parent-Student Handbook 2021-2022

Southeast Christian School admits students of any race, color, nationality, and ethnic origin to all the rights, privileges, programs, and activities generally accorded or made available to students at the school. It does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, nationality, or ethnic origin in the administration of its educational policies, admissions policies, and other school-administered programs.

Southeast Christian School is dual accredited by the Association of Christian Schools International (ACSI) and Cognia. ACSI assists the school in academic and technical issues, student activities, and legal/legislative matters. Our staff benefits from ACSI conferences and other resources.

Updates and Additions to the 2021-2022 Handbook

UPDATED: 1.1 - Anchor verses

UPDATED: 7.6 - Grading Scale (Added +/- to scale)
UPDATED: 7.15 - Late work policy for middle school
NEW: 1.9 - SCS Strategic Plan 2020-2025 Broad Goals

NEW: 4.3.2 - FACTS Family App NEW: 5.19 - Distance Learning

NEW: Appendix A - Uniform Pictorial Guide NEW: Appendix L - Student Code of Conduct

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1 INTRODUCTION	6
1.1 Anchor Verses for the 21-22 School Year	6
1.2 Statement of Faith	6
1.3 Our Learning Environment	7
1.4 Our School & Community	7
1.5 Our Mission	7
1.6 Our Vision	8
1.7 Our Core Values	8
1.8 SCS Strategic Plan 2020-2025 Broad Goals	8
1.9 Handbook Policy Exceptions	8
1.10 Changes in Policy	8
2 ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES	9
2.1 Admissions/Enrollment Priorities	9
2.2 Enrollment Contract	9
2.3 Withdrawal	9
2.4 Denial of Admissions	9
2.5 Students Losing Admissions Status	10
2.6 Legal Requirements for Private School Mandatory Reporting	10
2.7 Blended/Restricted Family Situations	10
2.8 Parent Led Organizations	10
2.8.1 Parents in Prayer	10
2.8.2 Care Team	10
2.8.3 Eagle Pride	10
2.8.4 Parent Community Organization	10
2.8.5 Parent Advisory Council	11
2.8.6 Room Parent	11
2.8.7 Security Team	11
3 FINANCES/CONTRIBUTIONS	11
3.1 Contributions	11
3.2 Variable Tuition	11
3.3 Incidental Billing	12
4 SCHOOL SCHEDULES AND COMMUNICATION	13
4.1 Office Hours/School Day	13
4.2 Contacting the School	13
4.3 Communication Platforms	13
4.3.1 - Parent Alert	13
4.3.2 - FACTS Family App (NEW in 2021)	16
4.3.3 - Social Media	16
4.4 School Closing/Delays	16
4.5 Visiting School	16

	4.6 Lost and Found	17
	4.7 Newsletter Updates	17
	4.8 FACTS-SIS (Student Information System)	17
	4.9 Problem Solving	17
	4.10 Grievance Procedures	18
5	SCHOOL DAY POLICIES	19
	5.1 Drop Off and Pick Up Process	19
	5.3 Signing Out	20
	5.4 Attendance and Tardies	21
	5.5 Fundraising	22
	5.6 Health and Medication Policy	22
	5.7 Immunization Requirements	24
	5.8 Service Animals	24
	5.9 Exclusion from School	24
	5.10 Accidents and Emergencies	24
	5.11 After-Hours Policy	24
	5.12 Co-Curricular Attendance Policies	24
	5.13 Field Trips	24
	5.14 Inclement Weather and Forced School Closure	25
	5.15 Lockers/Locks	25
	5.16 Class Assignments	26
	5.17 Pets	26
	5.18 Student Belongings from Home	26
	5.19 Distance Learning	26
6	BEHAVIOR POLICIES AND PROCEDURES	26
	6.1 Discipline	26
	6.2 Non-Violent Crisis Prevention and Intervention	27
	6.3 Bullying/Hazing	28
	6.4 Explanation of Consequences	28
	6.5 Uniform and Grooming	29
	6.5 Approach to Infractions	32
	6.6 Drug Prevention	32
	6.7 Electronic Devices	32
	6.8 Food, Drink, and Chewing Gum	33
	6.9 Respect for Property	33
	6.10 Search and Seizure (At School, School-Sponsored Events, or In School Uniform)	33
	6.11 Telephone Usage	33
	6.12 Technology	33
	6.13 Online Media Policy	34
	6.14 Playground Rules	35
	6.15 Public Display of Affection	36
7	ACADEMIC POLICIES AND PROCEDURES	36

	7.1 Expected Student Outcomes	36
	7.2 Philosophy of Curriculum and Instruction	37
	7.3 Southeast Christian School Special Education and Intervention Services	39
	7.4 Academic Integrity	41
	7.5 Progress Reporting	42
	7.6 Explanation of Grading Scale	42
	7.7 Retention	43
	7.8 Parent/Teacher Conferences	43
	7.9 Standardized Testing	43
	7.10 Academic Probation	43
	7.11 Eligibility Standards [Co-Curricular Participation]	43
	7.12 Athletics Policy	44
	7.13 Grade Computation Procedures	44
	7.14 Student Recognition and Awards	44
	7.15 Late Work Policy	45
	7.16 Homework Guiding Statement and Principles	45
	7.17 Test Make-Up Policy	46
	7.18 Middle School Community Service Requirement	46
	7.19 Graduation	46
	7.20 Highly Qualified and Accredited Instructional Staff	46
8	VOLUNTEER SCHOOL SERVICE PROGRAM	47
9	OTHER POLICIES	49
9	OTHER POLICIES Emergency Response Guide	49 49
9		
9	Emergency Response Guide	49
9	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017	49 49
9	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017 Non-Discriminatory Policy	49 49 49
	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017 Non-Discriminatory Policy Asbestos Notification	49 49 49 50
	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017 Non-Discriminatory Policy Asbestos Notification Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA):	49 49 49 50
	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017 Non-Discriminatory Policy Asbestos Notification Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA): APPENDICES	49 49 49 50 50
	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017 Non-Discriminatory Policy Asbestos Notification Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA): OAPPENDICES Appendix A - SCS Uniform Pictorial Guide	49 49 49 50 50 51
	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017 Non-Discriminatory Policy Asbestos Notification Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA): APPENDICES Appendix A - SCS Uniform Pictorial Guide Appendix B - Technology Use Agreement	49 49 49 50 50 51 51
	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017 Non-Discriminatory Policy Asbestos Notification Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA): OAPPENDICES Appendix A - SCS Uniform Pictorial Guide Appendix B - Technology Use Agreement Appendix C - 1 to 1 Chromebook Policy (Grades 4 - 8)	49 49 49 50 50 51 51 52 59
	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017 Non-Discriminatory Policy Asbestos Notification Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA): APPENDICES Appendix A - SCS Uniform Pictorial Guide Appendix B - Technology Use Agreement Appendix C - 1 to 1 Chromebook Policy (Grades 4 - 8) Appendix D - Volunteer Confidentiality Agreement	49 49 49 50 50 51 51 52 59
	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017 Non-Discriminatory Policy Asbestos Notification Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA): OAPPENDICES Appendix A - SCS Uniform Pictorial Guide Appendix B - Technology Use Agreement Appendix C - 1 to 1 Chromebook Policy (Grades 4 - 8) Appendix D - Volunteer Confidentiality Agreement Appendix E - Discipline Infractions by Level	49 49 49 50 50 51 51 52 59 60 62
	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017 Non-Discriminatory Policy Asbestos Notification Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA): OAPPENDICES Appendix A - SCS Uniform Pictorial Guide Appendix B - Technology Use Agreement Appendix C - 1 to 1 Chromebook Policy (Grades 4 - 8) Appendix D - Volunteer Confidentiality Agreement Appendix E - Discipline Infractions by Level Appendix F - Southeast Christian School Homeschool Program	49 49 49 50 50 51 51 52 59 60 62 66
	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017 Non-Discriminatory Policy Asbestos Notification Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA): APPENDICES Appendix A - SCS Uniform Pictorial Guide Appendix B - Technology Use Agreement Appendix C - 1 to 1 Chromebook Policy (Grades 4 - 8) Appendix D - Volunteer Confidentiality Agreement Appendix E - Discipline Infractions by Level Appendix F - Southeast Christian School Homeschool Program Appendix G - Continual Enrollment Agreement	49 49 49 50 50 51 51 52 59 60 62 66
	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017 Non-Discriminatory Policy Asbestos Notification Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA): OAPPENDICES Appendix A - SCS Uniform Pictorial Guide Appendix B - Technology Use Agreement Appendix C - 1 to 1 Chromebook Policy (Grades 4 - 8) Appendix D - Volunteer Confidentiality Agreement Appendix E - Discipline Infractions by Level Appendix F - Southeast Christian School Homeschool Program Appendix G - Continual Enrollment Agreement Appendix H - Waiver and Indemnity	49 49 49 50 50 51 51 52 59 60 62 66 67 68
	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017 Non-Discriminatory Policy Asbestos Notification Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA): APPENDICES Appendix A - SCS Uniform Pictorial Guide Appendix B - Technology Use Agreement Appendix C - 1 to 1 Chromebook Policy (Grades 4 - 8) Appendix D - Volunteer Confidentiality Agreement Appendix E - Discipline Infractions by Level Appendix F - Southeast Christian School Homeschool Program Appendix G - Continual Enrollment Agreement Appendix H - Waiver and Indemnity Appendix I - Volunteer Agreement	49 49 49 50 50 51 51 52 59 60 62 66 67 68
	Emergency Response Guide Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017 Non-Discriminatory Policy Asbestos Notification Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA): DAPPENDICES Appendix A - SCS Uniform Pictorial Guide Appendix B - Technology Use Agreement Appendix C - 1 to 1 Chromebook Policy (Grades 4 - 8) Appendix D - Volunteer Confidentiality Agreement Appendix E - Discipline Infractions by Level Appendix F - Southeast Christian School Homeschool Program Appendix G - Continual Enrollment Agreement Appendix H - Waiver and Indemnity Appendix J - Family Commitment	49 49 49 50 50 51 51 52 59 60 62 66 67 68 69 71

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Anchor Verses for the 21-22 School Year

So Christ himself gave the apostles, the prophets, the evangelists, the pastors and teachers, ¹² to equip his people for works of service, so that the body of Christ may be built up ¹³ until we all reach unity in the faith and in the knowledge of the Son of God and become mature, attaining to the whole measure of the fullness of Christ. (Ephesians 4:11-13)

1.2 Statement of Faith

Southeast Christian School was founded and functions upon the basic fundamental principles of the Word of God, and it espouses the historic Christian view of life as presented in the Bible. The following statements of faith and practice are held by every Southeast Christian School employee and by which every school family agrees to support and abide.

- We believe the Bible to be the verbally inspired and only written infallible, authoritative, inerrant Word of God (II Timothy 3:16, II Peter 1:21).
- We believe that there is one God, eternally existent in three persons: Father, Son and Holy Spirit (Genesis 1:1, John 10:30, John 10:37-38).
- We believe in the deity of our Lord Jesus Christ, in His virgin birth, in His sinless life, in His miracles, in His vicarious and atoning death through His shed blood, in His bodily resurrection, in His ascension to the right hand of the Father, and in His personal return in power and glory (Isaiah 7:14, Matthew 1:23, Luke 1:35, Hebrews 4:15, Hebrews 7:25, John 2:11, Hebrews 9:12, Ephesians 1:7, Colossians 1:14, John 11:25, Acts 1:11, Revelation 19:11-16).
- We believe that humankind is sinful by nature and that regeneration by the Holy Spirit is essential and the only way for their salvation (Romans 3:19, 23, John 3:16-19, John 5:24, Ephesians 2:810, Titus 3:56).
- We believe in the continuing ministry of the Holy Spirit, by whose indwelling the Christian is able to live a Godly life (Ephesians 5:18, Ephesians 4:30, I Corinthians 3:16, I Corinthians 6:19-20).
- We believe in the resurrection of both the saved and the lost—they who are saved unto eternal life and they who are lost unto eternal damnation (John 5:28-29). I believe in the spiritual unity of believers in our Lord Jesus Christ (Romans 8:9, I Corinthians 12:12-13, Galatians 3:26-28).
- We believe in the creation of the universe and of man and woman by the direct act of God (Genesis 1:26-28, Genesis 5:12).
- We believe that God has established marriage as a lifelong, exclusive relationship between one biological man and one biological woman and that all intimate sexual activity outside the marriage relationship, whether heterosexual, homosexual, bisexual conduct, or otherwise, is immoral and therefore sin (Genesis 2:24-25; Exodus 20:14, 17, 22:19; Leviticus 18:22-23, 20:13, 15-16; Matthew 15: 18-20, 19:4-6, 9; Romans 1:18-31; I Corinthians 6:9-10, 15-20; I Timothy 1:8-11; Jude 7).
- We believe that God created the human race male and female and that all conduct with the intent to adopt a gender other than one's birth gender is immoral and therefore sin, as well as, a rejection of the image of God within that person, (Genesis 1:27; Deuteronomy 22:5).
- We believe that God offers redemption and restoration to all who confess, forsake their sin and seek His mercy and forgiveness through Jesus Christ, (Acts 3:19-21; Romans 10:9-10; I Corinthians 6:9-11).

- We believe that every person must be afforded compassion, love, kindness, respect and dignity (Mark 12:28-31; Luke 6:31). Hateful or harassing behavior or attitudes directed towards any individual are to be repudiated as they are not in accordance with the Scriptures nor are they in accordance with the core values of Southeast Christian School.
- We believe that in order to preserve the function and integrity of Southeast Christian School as an expression of the Body of Christ, and to provide a Biblical role model for our staff, student body, parents and community, it is imperative that all persons associated with the School in any capacity, or who serve as volunteers, agree to support and abide by this Statement of Faith and with the school's right to teach what it deems to be the fundamental tenets of Christianity and belief, including that of marriage, gender identity, and sexuality. (Matthew 5:16; I Corinthians 5:1-5, 9-12; Philippians 2:14-16; I Thessalonians 5:22).

Our Statement of Faith is not exhaustive of all our beliefs. The Bible, as the inspired and infallible written Word of God, speaks with absolute authority regarding the proper conduct of mankind and is the unchanging foundation for all belief and behavior. The Southeast Christian School Board holds final interpretive authority on biblical meaning and application with regard to faith, doctrine, policy, practice, and discipline as they apply to the School.

1.3 Our Learning Environment

- Promotes self-worth, self-sufficiency, and positive attitudes.
- Includes facilities that meet the needs of students and staff and community members.
- Provides physical and emotional safety.
- Fosters communication between home and school.
- Provides opportunities for all types of learners and populations and equips students with skills and knowledge for career goals.
- Provides progressive and reliable technology and appropriate resources.
- Encourages collaboration and student driven learning.

1.4 Our School & Community

- Expect a high level of student achievement.
- Develop partnerships to achieve mutual goals.
- Nurture the moral character of every student.
- Have unity of purpose in achieving student-centered goals.
- Foster effective and open communication between school and community.
- Share services and resources to meet the needs of students and community.
- Develop and maintain a high-performing staff through accountability and recognition.
- Expect students to possess pride and a strong work ethic.

1.5 Our Mission

Soli Deo Gloria - To provide a Christ-centered education, preparing God's children and young adults for works of service, for the glory of God alone. (Eph. 4:12)

1.6 Our Vision

Southeast Christian staff will prepare students for:

Service - To serve others with their unique giftedness.

- Excellence To model excellence in all areas as we prepare students to transition academically to higher education.
- Christian leadership To demonstrate Christian leadership in praxis and practice through the development of a Christian worldview to build the body of Christ.

1.7 Our Core Values

- To develop a close home-school relationship through complementary teaching for the improvement of students' development and progress.
- To develop the spiritual life of students. This is the unique quality of the Christian school which enables the student to gain the true perspective on life.
- To develop students socially in order to equip them for healthy relationships with other people. The
 teachers and staff will contribute by living and teaching a Christian example to promote proper social
 growth.
- To develop students academically in the practical application of all knowledge by teaching them the fundamental subjects. This will allow them to proceed to higher goals.
- To develop a spirit of patriotism and appreciation for the principles of freedom that we have inherited from our founding fathers.
- To develop the physical health and well-being of students necessary to the growth of mind and body.

1.8 SCS Strategic Plan 2020-2025 Broad Goals

- Expand implementation of core values across all settings.
- Cultivate and maintain partnerships with the community, families, and staff.
- Provide multiple pathways to learning grounded in a Biblical worldview to facilitate academic growth.
- Provide extra-curricular programs with relevant technology.
- Sustain an exemplary safety and security plan.
- Continue to serve through humble acts of service.
- Strengthen financial health.

1.9 Handbook Policy Exceptions

This Parent-Student Handbook is an effort to detail the policies that will govern the operation of Southeast Christian School on a day-to-day basis. While it is impossible to write policies that will govern all situations, this document is a good-faith attempt to include policies that will apply to most school-related happenings. The Southeast Christian School administration does, however, reserve the right to make exceptions to the policies in this document as an individual situation might warrant. In the very difficult task of managing individual behavior within a group context, we reserve the right to consider the needs of the individual and the greater good of the entire school.

1.10 Changes in Policy

This Southeast Christian School Handbook supersedes all previous Parent-Student Handbooks. While every effort is made to keep the contents of this document current, Southeast Christian School reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate any of the policies, and/or procedures described in the Southeast Christian School Handbook with or without prior notice to parents and students.

2 ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES

2.1 Admissions/Enrollment Priorities

Students will be required to fulfill the admissions and enrollment expectations including a Christ-centered commitment reflected in behavior, academic applications, attendance, timeliness, and study and growth in God's word.

Southeast Christian School has adopted a continual enrollment model (see Appendix G). Family registration fees will be collected via FACTS Incidental Billing each February. Families who provide written notice of withdrawal by the set deadline may reapply for admission but will not be given priority over previous applicants.

2.2 Enrollment Contract

Enrollment contracts will be entered into by Southeast Christian School, the parent or guardian (sponsors) of the child, and FACTS Tuition Management Program. Parents may withdraw from the contract prior to April 1st of the enrolling year. After that date, parents/guardians are bound by all the contractual provisions, including to pay tuition as specified in the contract.

Contracts should be submitted with the non-refundable registration fee as set forth by the Board of Directors. Contracts are processed in the order they are received. Contracts received after a class is full, or without the registration fee, will be put on a waiting list until the school determines that there is available space.

Contracts are null and void unless signed by at least one parent/guardian. When signed, the contract supersedes any previous contract covering the same school year. The Executive Director may release a parent from a contract due to unforeseen circumstances as presented by the parents through formal documentation. The Executive Director may present the appeal for release to the board.

2.3 Withdrawal

WITHDRAWAL/REFUND POLICY: a. Any withdrawal occurring after April 1st DOES NOT relieve the enrolling parent or legal guardian (undersigned) of the responsibility for tuition payment for the entire school year. A withdrawal prompted by the enrolling entity must be provided in writing to the Executive Director's office.

- b. Should a student be expelled from school for serious misconduct, the enrolling entity shall remain responsible for payment of tuition and fees for the entire school year.
- c. Registration and application fees are non-refundable.

2.4 Denial of Admissions

Southeast Christian School reserves the right to deny admission to any student whose needs we cannot meet or who compromises the expressed mission, goals, purpose, safety, or philosophy of Christian education. Southeast Christian School also reserves the right to deny admission or discontinue enrollment to a student whose parent(s) actions or lifestyle are contrary to the school's understanding of biblical precepts and principles. Additionally, parents who demonstrate a lack of cooperation and commitment to the home and school working together may not be allowed to enroll or re-enroll their children in the school.

2.5 Students Losing Admissions Status

Families of students who do not demonstrate financial commitment by having tuition and school fees paid on appropriate due dates may not be guaranteed a spot for the Fall, and wait list students may be contacted to fill their spot.

2.6 Legal Requirements for Private School Mandatory Reporting

Southeast Christian School, like all private Christian schools, operates independently from the Colorado Department of Education, but is still subject to some legal requirements. These requirements include school health standards, and mandatory reporting of abuse or suspected criminal activity, as well as those requirements outlined for all non-public schools as found in the <u>Colorado Revised Statutes</u>.

Per Colorado State Law, all employees of Southeast Christian Schools are mandated to report child abuse, suspicion of abuse and/or inexplicable injury or neglect of a child to the proper legal authorities.

2.7 Blended/Restricted Family Situations

In situations where a blended family situation exists, it is the responsibility of both parents to keep the school current with all necessary legal documents regarding custody arrangements. If there is a restraining order in place, please bring a copy of the order along with a picture of the restricted party to the school office. We will follow these orders until notified of any changes by the parent or guardian with proper documentation.

2.8 Parent Led Organizations

Parents serving alongside Southeast Christian educators and students are a crucial component to our mission and purpose. We encourage all parents to find one or more of the following areas to serve and be involved.

2.8.1 Parents in Prayer

Parents of Southeast Christian School come together weekly to passionately pray before God for the lives of our children, teachers, staff, and all of the Southeast Christian School families. If you don't feel comfortable praying out loud in a group, you can still attend and pray along! It is a powerful way to support the school!

2.8.2 Care Team

The Care Team is designed to enrich, pray, and be a support system for Southeast Christian School families (students, teachers, staff and/or families) who are dealing with minor injuries to major life-changing events.

2.8.3 Eagle Pride

This middle school club encourages middle school spirit through unique social events, locker decorations, and spirit initiatives.

2.8.4 Parent Community Organization

Building community at Southeast Christian School, PCO advocates for the students & the school, meets regularly, conducts fundraisers, coordinates school activities, and promotes a Christian community.

2.8.5 Parent Advisory Council

The purpose of the PAC is to inform, encourage, and provide opportunities for parent and community members to be involved in the planning and implementation of the school's strategic plan. The PAC is an opportunity for the parents to provide feedback and input on a quarterly basis. The meetings will be set for evenings. If you are interested in serving on the PAC, please contact the Executive Director at michelle.davis@sechristianschool.org

2.8.6 Room Parent

Each classroom has a volunteer coordinator who assists the teacher in activities, parent communication, and events for the school year. Primary contact: Vicki Wass (www.vwass11@gmail.com). For more information on involvement as a room parent please-review-this-document.

2.8.7 Security Team

Under the leadership of the Director of Safety & Security, parents with training and a passion for school safety are engaged to support safety at all school events throughout the year. Primary contact: james.guest@sechristianschool.org

3 FINANCES/CONTRIBUTIONS

To ensure stability and continuity in your child's Christian education and socialization, the School Board deems it essential that upon enrollment/reenrollment, families commit to a full school year, stated in the Enrollment Agreement as follows: Upon acceptance, I understand and agree that my child(ren) is/are enrolled for the full school year. I recognize that Southeast Christian School may not be open on all dates set forth in its calendar for reasons including, but not limited to, weather and/or the inability to use facilities. There will be no deduction in tuition for snow days, breaks, holidays, illnesses or absences.

3.1 Contributions

For those interested in donating to the school, Southeast Christian School is an official non-profit, tax-exempt, 501 (c)(3) organization and will provide a tax-deductible receipt in the name of the donor. For non-cash items, Southeast Christian School will provide an official letter stating the item(s) received. The IRS asks donors to be responsible for assessing the fair market value of the donated item(s).

3.2 Variable Tuition

Current or new families may apply for variable tuition at any time during the summer or school year as a need arises. Additionally, Southeast Christian offers a ministry leader variable tuition program.

Variable Tuition is:

- Based upon needs of applicants and availability of funding.
- Given for one year at a time. Families may re-apply if the need persists.

Who is eligible:

- Existing families of students in PS-8 with current Southeast Christian School accounts. Highest priority goes to returning Southeast Christian School families.
- New families with students in PS-8 who have completed the enrollment process.

Potential Award Levels:

- 0%, 10%, 20%, or 40% of total family tuition unless a significant family need or unusual circumstance.
- Amount may vary from year to year based on family circumstances, amount available, and needs.

How to Apply:

- Notify Wendell Geary at: wendell.geary@sechristianschool.org of your intent to apply by February 1, 2022.
- Follow the link to FACTS from the Southeast Christian School website.
- Enter your financial information and complete all required fields.
- Complete the essay question on the FACTS website. We are unable to review your application until the FACTS application form and essay are complete and verified (verification can take up to 10 days).

Information needed to complete your FACTS application:

- After completing the application, please submit copies of required tax documentation directly to FACTS via mail or electronically. FACTS is a secured site and confidential.
- Payment of your non-refundable \$30 application fee directly to FACTS.

Key Deadlines for the 2021-2022 School Year:

- February 1: Families notify Wendell Geary of intent to apply at wendell.geary@sechristianschool.org
- After applications are submitted; reviews will occur every two weeks. Please allow an additional two
 weeks for formal award offers.

What is the Southeast Christian School Variable Tuition decision-making process?

- The FACTS online application is reviewed by the Southeast Christian School Variable Tuition Committee and will be kept confidential.
- Assistance is granted based on demonstrated need, family situation, and available funds.
- Applications must be verified by FACTS to be considered for Variable Tuition.

How and when will I be notified?

 Recipients will be notified by Wendell Geary of the committee's decision. Should you need a modification to this plan, you should contact the Executive Director at 303-841-5988.

Important note:

- All information is confidential.
- Recipients must remain in good standing with the school including attendance, passing grades, good behavior, and volunteer hours.

3.3 Incidental Billing

All SCS families are required to set up a FACTS account to be used for incidental billing for fees that fall outside of regular tuition. Incidental billing allows families to pay student fees (tech fees, damaged textbooks, athletic fees, etc.) through their online account and eliminates a silo-based infrastructure with a single system to capture all tuition and fees. A nominal annual fee will be billed by FACTS for this service.

4 SCHOOL SCHEDULES AND COMMUNICATION

4.1 Office Hours/School Day

Students should not be on campus unattended by parents prior to 8:00 AM or after 3:20 PM.

Regular school day starts promptly at 8:20 AM and ends at 3:20 PM.

Soft start begins no earlier than 8:00 AM with teachers on duty in their classrooms.

- From 8:00-8:20 AM, as TK-5 students enter the building, they will report to room 120 for morning exercises, singing, pledges, prayer, announcements, and a time of corporate worship.
 Classroom teachers will escort their students to their respective classrooms before 8:20 AM.
- 6th-8th students will be allowed to go directly to the Middle School area upon entering the school building.

Middle School students are expected to be in their seats, ready to learn by 8:20 AM.

Regular School Office Hours: 8:00 AM-3:30 PM Monday-Friday. Scheduled absences or absence due to illness may be reported to the school attendance line: 720-842-5670.

School-sponsored, school-endorsed activities running outside of normal operating hours will be supervised by corresponding personnel.

Students who are not picked up by 3:30 PM may be placed in after-care and charged accordingly by our after-care provider.

4.2 Contacting the School

The main school number is 303-841-5988. Please do not call the church for information on school matters. To report absences, appointments, pick-up changes, or anything we may need to know concerning your child during school hours, please call or email: notetoschool@sechristianschool.org

Staff/teachers have email and phone extensions in their classrooms. They will make this information available to you at the beginning of the school year. Feel free to contact the front desk or email the teacher and your concern will be addressed in an appropriate time frame.

If you are aware of a safety or security concern, please contact the school office or security department with this information. Please do not participate in communication with a student on a personal or school device. Contact: Security Office Number: 720-842-5648 or James Quest: james.guest@sechristianschool.org

4.3 Communication Platforms



4.3.1 - Parent Alert

Parent Alert is a notification system through FACTS-SIS that the school has subscribed to in an effort to increase communication. It will be used to alert parents with general school information and/or during an emergency

situation. This gives us the ability to send a text message, e-mail, and automated voice mail.

Lock Down - Imminent threat in the immediate area or on campus. Secure the Perimeter - Perceived threat, elevated risk. Business as usual within the building. Evacuate to location to be determined based on situation. Shelter in location to be determined based on situation.
*Please be advised that in any emergency situation, it is important for phone lines as well as entrances/approaches to the building to be accessible and free for emergency personnel. Parents attempting to gain access to their children, during an emergency event, will be redirected by law enforcement until the scene has been made secure.

(see image on next page)

The following terminology reflects the emergency protocol in place at Southeast Christian School (see Figure 1):

*DIAL 911 IN EMERGENCY

Southeast Christian Church and School

9650 Jordan Road, Parker, CO 80134 Church: 303-841-9292 School: 303-841-5988

LOCKDOWN



- · ALERT Recognize danger, get the word out
- LOCKDOWN Lock doors, silence phones, lights off, barricade
- INFORM Live updates and communication
- COUNTER Apply skills to distract and confuse
- EVACUATE As soon as it is safe to do so

SECURE PERIMETER



- Everyone inside
- · Lock doors and windows
- No Entry

EVACUATE TO



- Listen for Instructions on location
- Move quickly and orderly

SHELTER IN



- Listen for Instructions on location
- · Tune to local news

4.3.2 - FACTS Family App (NEW in 2021)

In one easy-to-use app, families can access grades, calendars, announcements, and more.

- Never miss an announcement. Receive push notifications and announcements from your school.
- Make payments on the go. If your school uses FACTS billing solutions, you can make payments through the FACTS Family App.
- Simple and accessible. Easy to use and navigate throughout the app.

4.3.3 - Social Media

SCS families are encouraged to like and follow the school on the following social media platforms:









4.4 School Closing/Delays

When circumstances necessitate the closing of school, parents will receive a phone call through our Parent Alert system. Below is a list of other options to find this information:

TV: Channels 4, 7, 9

In the event school is to be dismissed before regular closing time, announcements will be made through Parent Alert. Parents should endeavor to pick up their children as soon as possible.

4.5 Visiting School

To ensure student confidentiality, Southeast Christian School asks that visits be pre-arranged and approved by teachers and/or staff. We use the following criteria to help make visiting a positive, safe, and productive time for all involved:

- We are in a secure public building. Upon your first visit each school year, please provide your driver license for check-in. Once you have been entered into the system, we can sign you in by entering your name only. Therefore, all visitors are required to sign in at the school office and wear a visitor's tag so we can maintain a friendly and safe school setting.
- For security reasons, child/youth visitors are not allowed to visit the school without a parent present.
- Conferences should be arranged in advance and at a time when the teacher does not have a student or students in the classroom, or is not on duty elsewhere. Parents should not interrupt class nor engage with a teacher when that teacher is expected to be supervising students.
- Southeast Christian School will require background checks on all parents, volunteers, and any other person placed in a position of trust in the school for the safety and well-being of our students. Parents who do not complete a background check will not be allowed in the school past the office during business hours, nor be able to participate in off-site activities with students, except for large group events that are supervised by Southeast Christian School staff.
- The school reserves the right as its sole discretion to deny a parent and/or volunteer participation in any school sponsored event and/or access to the campus.

- Visitors should identify the purpose of the visit and the destination.
- Visitors must report to the designated appointment location.

4.6 Lost and Found

Southeast Christian School maintains an area for lost and found items in the hallway outside of the school office. Students should check this area periodically to claim any lost clothing, books, notebooks, etc. Items considered valuable (i.e. jewelry) will be locked away until claimed. Any items not claimed within a set time will be donated to charity at the end of each month. Southeast Christian School strongly suggests that all clothing items be labeled with the student's name for easy identification.

4.7 Newsletter Updates

Approval Process for Eagle News:

Newsletters will be sent via email and posted to FACTS-SIS where they will be archived and accessible throughout the year. Newsletters will be posted on the first and third Monday of each month (or the next scheduled school day due to school holidays). If you would like to request that an announcement be posted in the newsletter, please follow the below guidelines.

FORMATTING GUIDELINES:

- 1- Font: Please use Calibri (Body), size 11 font for all communications
- 2- Heading: Headings should be included and should be bold, capitalized, and underlined
- 3- Body paragraph should be single-spaced
- 3- All formal announcement should be drafted, edited, and in final release form and e-mailed
- to: announcements@sechristianschool.org
- 4- Please include a contact person and email address if your announcement requires a response.
- 5- Any surveys, forms, etc. should be hyperlinked within the document

DEADLINES:

For first Monday newsletters, announcements must be submitted the Wednesday prior. For third Monday newsletters, announcements must be submitted the Wednesday prior.

4.8 FACTS-SIS (Student Information System)

Southeast Christian School provides students and parents a web-based service called FACTS-SIS. This service enables parents and students to receive academic information such as grades, assignments and special teacher communications on a regular and timely basis by logging onto a password-protected, personal account. Each parent and student has different passwords, enabling teachers to communicate privately with parents. Additional items in FACTS-SIS include school calendar items, access to frequently used forms. i.e., background check forms, school supply lists, and more. A family directory is also available.

4.9 Problem Solving

Southeast Christian School educational mission involves working with the home in the overall Christian education of students. On occasion, this cooperation between the school and home may become difficult. To avoid such situations, the school requires parents enrolling or maintaining enrollment of their children to affirmatively support and cooperate with the school. Parents agree to support the school with prayers and with a positive attitude.

Complaints or suggestions should be shared only with the teacher, administrator, or person directly involved and not with your child or other people, following the Matthew 18 principle below. Southeast Christian School reserves the right to discontinue enrollment of a student whose parent(s) actions or lifestyle are contrary to the school's understanding of biblical precepts and principles. Additionally, parents who demonstrate a lack of cooperation and commitment to the home and school working together may not be allowed to enroll or re-enroll their children.

Matthew 18 Principle

Parents at Southeast Christian School have signed enrollment documents to stand by the Matthew 18 principle for solving problems. The major aspects of the principle, as stated by Dr. Paul Kienel (founder of ACSI) are:

- 1. Keep the matter confidential. Share the problem with only those directly involved.
- 2. Keep the circle small. Avoid the temptation to have your opinion validated. Seek validation from the Lord, not several parents or teachers who will tell you that you are correct.
- 3. Be straightforward. Respect the other person by believing that they can handle criticism. Share an observation rather than a judgment.
- 4. Be forgiving. The goal of sharing the observation is restoration and spiritual growth, not justification or the like.

Dr. Kienel estimates that 80% of school problems are solved at step one—between the people directly involved.

4.10 Grievance Procedures

Parent Grievance Procedures

Step 1: Parent to Teacher: The parent is to contact the teacher via note, email, phone, or conversation to request a meeting. The purpose of this communication is to notify the teacher of the issue to be resolved. Teachers will engage in an e-mail dialogue regarding the problem. The teacher will contact the parent to set up a meeting to resolve the issue.

Step 2: Parent/Teacher/ Principal: If either party does not feel the issue is resolved, a conference with the parent, teacher, and Principal will be arranged to assure that an open and complete conversation can take place. Any time an issue reaches this level, the Principal and Executive Director will be updated by the teacher concerning the issue.

Step 3: Executive Director Involvement: Should the issue still not be resolved, a conference with all involved will be scheduled with the Executive Director. The party requesting the conference must put in writing the specific issue, measures taken and resolution being sought.

Step 4: Appeal to the School Board: Should the issue still not be resolved, the grieving party may appeal to the school board. The appealing party must put in writing the specific concern, measures taken to resolve, and the resolution being sought. The appeal must be submitted to the board chair within 10 days of the conference with the Executive Director.

5 SCHOOL DAY POLICIES

5.1 Drop Off and Pick Up Process

Morning Drop Off

- Students may be dropped off to enter the building, beginning at 8:00 AM.
- The school day begins at 8:20 AM.
- From 8:00-8:15 AM, as TK-5 students enter the building, they will report to room 100 for morning exercises, singing, pledges, prayer, announcements, and a time of corporate worship. Classroom teachers will escort their students to their respective classrooms at 8:15 AM.
- 6th-8th students will be allowed to go directly to the Middle School area upon entering the school building.
- Prior to 8:00 AM, students may not be allowed in the building and there is no supervision of students prior to this time.

Half Day TK and Kindergarten Pick Up

- Students are dismissed to parents at 11:30 AM. (exact time subject to change based on lunch schedule)
- Students will be escorted to the school lobby for dismissal.
- Parents will need to pick students up from the school lobby.
- There is no drive through pick up for Half Day programs.

Drive Through Pick Up

- Dismissal is at 3:20 PM.
- Drive Through is a **cell-phone free zone!**
- Enter off of Wintergreen from the furthest eastern entrance to the parking lot and proceed to the front of the building in two drive through lines.
- Pull up as far as possible to accommodate as many cars as possible on the first loading; do not leave the vehicle unattended in drive through line.
- School-issued identification cards should be visible either in the passenger window or visor until exiting the pick-up line.
- Do not stop in a crosswalk.
- Please be ready to assist your child with his/her seatbelt.
- When instructed to pull forward, do so even if you see your child. They will be instructed to walk to your car once it comes to a complete stop.
- If you are waiting for multiple students and they did not all load at the same time, once current students
 are loaded you will be instructed to pull forward and the process will repeat itself until all students are
 loaded.
- To exit, you may proceed north on Jordan or at the last lane of the parking lot you may turn left and head back to Wintergreen.

Park and Walk Up

- Park in the parking lot and proceed to the playground for walk up dismissal.
- Show your school-issued identification card so your name can be called and your child will be dismissed to meet you in the designated area.
- Please use crosswalks at all times.

Upon leaving the playground, please keep your children with you at all times.

Indoor Pick-Up for Inclement Weather

- In inclement weather, pick-up will be conducted inside the Gym.
- All parents will need to park and come in using the church entrance.
- Bring your school-issued identification card or driver's license with you.
- Please enter room 100 at the double doors.
- Upon entering room 100, please show your school-issued identification card for student names to be called.
- You will proceed to the west exit of room 100 where your children will meet you at the door so that you
 may exit together.

Release of Students:

Students in TK-5th grades will only be released to individuals listed on your child's pick up form. Anyone picking up a student at Southeast Christian School, at dismissal, must show a security-issued identification card and if asked, a valid driver's license for identification verification. Otherwise they must report to the school office where we will assist in connecting you with your student.

Students in TK-5th grade will not be allowed to be self-released unless a permission form has been signed and approved by the school Principal. Self-release status for students in K-5th grades will only be approved in special circumstances as determined at the sole discretion of the school.

Students wishing to go home with another family must have permission from their parent or guardian. Teachers cannot release students to unauthorized adults—even friends, without parental permission. All carpool participants must be on each student's pick-up list and have the family's identification card.

Dismissal for 6th, 7th and 8th Graders:

All 6th, 7th and 8th graders are considered "self-release" at 3:20 PM. Students may proceed to the designated area at the church entrance after school. Southeast Christian Church and School does not provide supervision or assume responsibility for 6th, 7th and 8th grade students after 3:20 PM. While in the designated area, school rules and core expectations are still in effect, including safety awareness, showing respect for church property and adults. This includes:

- Walking at all times and using marked crosswalks when proceeding through the parking lot.
- Students may not "cut through car pick-up lines".
- Only 6th, 7th and 8th graders are allowed in front of the church entrance. Students with younger siblings must wait along the sidewalk pick-up line.
- No standing or walking on the church planters.

Leaving/Arriving During the Day:

All students who enter or leave the building during the school day must be signed in and out of the office by an authorized person on the pick-up list.

5.3 Signing Out

When a student is leaving school prior to the end of the day, parents are required to come to the school office to sign their student out. We ask that parents notify the teacher and school office ahead of time if they plan to pick their student up early. NOTE: Due to end of day procedures, we request that you do not attempt to sign out your student after 3:00. After 3:00, parents will need to wait until normal dismissal time. Thank you for your

assistance in this matter. Students are not permitted to leave school grounds at any time during the day without permission.

5.4 Attendance and Tardies

Attendance is the responsibility of the student, the parents, and the school. The importance of regular, daily attendance as a basis for academic achievement cannot be overemphasized. Absences have a negative effect upon instructional continuity, regardless of attempts to make up the work. The school believes duplication of the classroom experience can never be accomplished with after-school assignments. The regular contact of students with one another in the classroom and their participation in a well-planned instructional activity under the guidance of a competent teacher are vital to this purpose.

It is belief in this philosophy and expectation regarding attendance, that the following procedures will be implemented at Southeast Christian School:

<u>Excused Absences</u> - absences due to illness, family-related illness, family emergencies, funerals, and other pre-approved absences arranged with the Principal. All work may be made up for full credit.

<u>Unexcused Absences</u> - absences due to truancy, suspension, oversleeping, or other unapproved reasons. Work will not be able to be made up.

Taking Attendance:

Students are tardy beginning at 8:20 AM. Classroom teachers will have attendance recorded no later than 8:30 AM in FACTS-SIS. Maintaining accurate attendance records are vital to promoting good attendance. During inclement weather, administration will communicate how to handle tardies/absences.

- TK-5: Students who arrive after or leave before 11:00 AM will be marked absent for the entire day.
- MS: Students who are absent for 4 or more periods will be marked absent for the entire day.

Late Arrival To School:

Parents must sign in their students at the front office if they arrive after 8:20 AM. Failing to sign in upon arriving late to school, the student will remain absent until that individual has gone to the front office to receive a tardy pass.

Interventions and Action for Chronically Tardy Students:

- 1. If a student is tardy more than 10 times, cumulative through the semester; and/or if a student's tardies or absences are significantly impacting his/her performance or creating undue stress on the staff the Principal or designee may contact the parents to request a meeting.
- 2. Middle School Only Students who are tardy to classes throughout the day will be assigned detention on their 3rd tardy per class.

Interventions and Action for Chronically Absent Students:

- Absences include all medical/dental notes, sickness, court times, or school-related activities (SA).
 Parent handwritten, e-mail, or phone in messages regarding illness, unforeseen circumstances, or
 family vacation will be counted toward the 18 maximum absences (per year) allowed. Children who are
 chronically ill will have a health plan in place with interventions and supports.
- 2. Students who miss extended amounts of time or who have exceeded the 10% (18 school days) absent threshold will be considered chronically absent.

- 3. When a student becomes chronically absent, the Principal will meet with the attendance committee to determine next steps. The committee may choose to exempt the student (if subject mastery is demonstrated) or assign any of the following: summer school, additional tutoring, or retention of students. All fees associated with the assigned remediation will be paid by the responsible family.
- 4. Students must accept responsibility for obtaining make-up work from teachers.
- 5. Teachers are not required to provide work in advance for planned absences.

Make-Up Work After Absences:

When an absence meets the criteria for allowing make-up work, the following procedures apply:

- For each class period missed, one class period will be allowed to make up missed assignments.
- Teachers will inform students of the time allotted for completing make-up work after an absence. However the student is responsible for finding out about the assignments and for making up the work in the time assigned.
- Students may receive a lowered grade for any work made up following a suspension. The Principal may determine the grade depending on the reason for the suspension.
- Students who have extended excused absences for medical reasons (two consecutive weeks or longer) will be allowed to complete a minimal number of individualized assignments that will ensure their exposure to and mastery of the curriculum presented during the absence.

5.5 Fundraising

Prohibited:

- The selling of merchandise during the school day by students or parents.
- Any activity that requires solicitation for personal gain or use by students, staff, or parents.
- Selling during school hours, to either students, staff, or parents of any merchandise by outside groups such as but not limited to Boy Scouts, Girl Scouts, church groups, civic clubs, etc.

Allowed:

- Participation in pre-approved charity promotions
- School-wide events approved by the administration

5.6 Health and Medication Policy

Southeast Christian School wants to ensure the health, safety, and medical needs of students. As such, the school contracts with a qualified registered nurse to manage health/wellness services and standards. The nurse provides resources, training, screening, and medication/health oversight, and is available to discuss your child's needs and coordinate care. School health is a team effort in the school environment and research supports that health and academics are related. (CDC. (2014, May). *Health and Academic Achievement*. Retrieved 3/1/18 from: https://www.cdc.gov/healthyyouth/health and academics/pdf/health-academic-achievement.pdf)

Southeast Christian School's policies and practices for health services follow applicable current federal and state laws. Some of the Colorado governing bodies may include Public Health (CDPHE), Department of Education (CDE), Board of Health, Board of Education, Board of Nursing, and the Department of Human Services (DHS), along with accrediting agencies and associations.

Local governments may override some policies if/as necessary for public health. (6 CCR 1010-6, 6.3A3 pg.2) Please refer to other policies and procedures the school may have regarding medications, self-carry, field trips, overnight events, sports, out-of-country trips etc. "A non-public school is considered a private business", and not all public-school health services may be offered or provided. (Colorado Non-Public Schools. (n.d.). Retrieved 3/1/18, from http://www.cde.state.co.us/choice/nonpublic_index)

If your child has a health condition and you choose to not share that information with the school, or you choose to not provide daily or emergency medication and applicable permission forms if needed or prescribed, the undersigned parent(s) or guardian(s) hereby agree to release the school and its personnel from any and all claim(s), which they now have or may hereafter have arising regarding the consequences of this choice, and are aware that 911 may be called in an emergency.

Please contact the school nurse consultant, Alicia Tormoehlen (<u>alicia.tormoehlen@sechristianschool.org</u>) regarding questions or concerns about your child.

School and Child Care Illness Policy

We are unable to care for ill children. You may not send your child to school until they have been fever free for 24 hours. If a child shows signs of illness after arriving, we will separate the ill child from the other children. The child will be sent home if any of the following are present:

- A temperature over 100.4 within the last 24/hours
- Contagious skin or eye infection
- Diarrhea or vomiting
- Contagious disease (chicken pox, measles, strep, etc.)
- Rash
- Is not rested and alert enough to participate in classroom activities
- A child on an antibiotic for a contagious illness less than 24/hours

We will endeavor to give each child a wellness scan as they come to class. If a child becomes sick during school, he/she will be isolated in the Office and made to feel as comfortable as possible. The Principal, Office Manager, or teacher will contact the parent/guardian and inform them of the symptoms and request that the child be picked up from school. If a parent cannot be reached within 30 minutes, the child's emergency contact numbers will be called.

Likewise, our staff will not be allowed to work if they have a communicable illness or infection.

For a detailed list of excludable illnesses, see CDE's School and Child Care Illness Policy

Medications and First Aid

Dispensing over-the-counter medication is a common area of misunderstanding. Southeast Christian School must follow health laws that seem rather strict.

- Parents who desire to have Southeast Christian School dispense over the counter or prescription
 medications must supply a written order from the physician to the office signed by both the physician
 and parent. Forms are available from the office and on FACTS-SIS. Please complete forms for
 maintenance medications at the beginning of the school year.
- 2. All medications need to be sent in their original containers, in a plastic bag clearly labeled with the child's first/last name, student picture, and doctor's order.
- 3. Children may not carry on their person or in their backpack, medicine (cough drops, vitamins, pain reliever) of any kind without permission from the school administration. The school does not have a full time school nurse on staff. We do have Red Cross Certified staff. In case of illness or serious injury, the parents will be notified immediately. If, in case of an emergency, you cannot be reached, 911 will be called. Please make sure to update your phone records with the office.

4. Expired medications will not be given to students and must be picked up or will be disposed of immediately.

5.7 Immunization Requirements

Immunization requirements will be strictly enforced for all students. Students who do not meet the requirements according to Colorado Revised Statutes 1989 25-4-902 may be denied attendance. Parents may choose to submit a state authorized exemption. If your child receives any immunizations during the year, please bring the updated certified immunization record to the office.

5.8 Service Animals

Southeast Christian School reserves the right to accept students whose needs require a service animal as evidenced by professional care providers. Administration will work directly with any impacted teacher and/or classroom on the logistics of having a service animal on the property. The service animal can only be a dog. The service animal must wear proper identifying vests at all times. Service animals must be harnessed, leashed, or tethered, unless these devices interfere with the service animals work or the individual's disability preventing using these devices. In that case, the individual must maintain control of the animal through voice, signal or other effective controls. If the service animal growls, barks or becomes aggressive with staff or students, the service animal will not be allowed to return to school.

5.9 Exclusion from School

Any child afflicted with any infectious or contagious disease may be sent home from school. Students may be excluded from school activities due to illness. When your child is not feeling well and has a fever, please keep them home from school.

5.10 Accidents and Emergencies

Accidents and emergencies must be reported immediately to emergency services (911) if necessary, and to the Executive Director, Principal, security and school office. Emergency contact information must be on file for all families. Changes in this information should be revised in FACTS-SIS and/or reported to the school office.

5.11 After-Hours Policy

Normal school hours are from 8:00 AM - 3:20 PM. On numerous occasions, the school is open earlier or later due to co-curricular activities. For the safety and security of both our students and our property, any student at school outside of school hours (without permission or supervision) may face disciplinary action. Students should not be unattended on the school or church property before or after hours.

5.12 Co-Curricular Attendance Policies

Eligible students must be present for one-half (1/2) of the school day to practice or participate in any co-curricular activity (co-curricular is defined as athletics, choir, drama, etc.). The Principal may make exceptions to this policy if circumstances warrant.

5.13 Field Trips

A variety of field trip experiences designed to extend the curriculum will be offered to Southeast Christian School students. Most of these will be academic in nature and will take place during the regular school day.

Some developmentally and age-appropriate field trips involving travel (to include foreign countries) will be offered. Generally, these will be elective and non-graded.

Students who are eligible may attend field trips. Eligibility will be based on academics, conduct, fulfillment of financial obligation, and attendance. Specifically, a student cannot have any major discipline violations, and cannot be failing any class (current grades and conduct in FACTS-SIS will be reviewed). Uniforms are required for all field trips. Cell phones will not be allowed on trips. In a continuing effort to provide a safe and secure environment for our students, we ask that all parents wishing to participate in field trips or any other class activity submit to a background check and may be required to submit a formal application. Forms are available in the school office and on FACTS-SIS.

Only parents and legal guardians, whose background checks have been cleared, may transport students on field trips. All drivers must also submit to a motor vehicle report and pass SCS guidelines before being cleared to drive. Parents or legal guardians wishing to transport their own children may do so, but should not be considered field trip chaperones. Parents are only to drive to the designated location and back with no stops. Movies may not be shown in the vehicle.

5.14 Inclement Weather and Forced School Closure

The duties and obligations of Southeast Christian School may be suspended immediately, without notice, during all periods that Southeast Christian School is closed because of force of nature events including, but not limited to fire, loss of electricity or water, acts of God, war, governmental action, terrorism, epidemic, pandemic or any other event beyond our control. If such an event occurs, our duties and obligations may be suspended or postponed until such time as Southeast Christian School, in its sole discretion, may safely re-open. It is the policy of Southeast Christian School that no portion of the tuition paid or to be paid in connection herewith shall be refunded, credited, abated, or otherwise excused in the event that Southeast Christian School, for a length of time not to exceed 30 school days as a result of a casualty or other force majeure event, shall (a) postpone or cancel commencement of classes for the current academic year, or (b) disrupt instruction on or advancement of curriculum or other programs during the current academic year. Regardless of any such postponement, cancellation or disruption, parents agree to pay when due the tuition amounts required.

Inclement Weather, Recess and Inside Dismissal

Colorado and our ever-changing weather present many challenges. Every effort will be made to keep students in their normal routine. Please make sure that your students leave the house prepared for the elements. School closures will be communicated via our FACTS-SIS Parent Alert.

The school uses 25 degrees as a general marker for keeping students inside for recess.

In case of inclement weather, an inside dismissal may be called and parents will be notified via FACTS-SIS's Parent Alert System. Parents/guardians are to come to the gym to pick up their child. Parents will enter the center door and names will be called by school staff. Students who hear their family name may get up and walk to the far west door to meet their pick up person.

5.15 Lockers/Locks

Lockers will be assigned by school staff to all Southeast Christian School 6th – 8th grade students. Student requests for a locker location will not be honored unless for a medical reason. Lockers may be searched at any time with reasonable suspicion of misconduct.

5.16 Class Assignments

Our process for making class list assignments is quite extensive as we seek to place our students in the best possible classroom each year. Parents are given an opportunity to provide feedback regarding class placement but do not make teacher requests. Our current teachers AND teachers for the following year, have input into arranging class lists. These lists are prayed for and prayed over as we go through this process. We do our best to balance males/females, new/current students, academic needs, behavior needs, teaching/classrooms styles as well as social needs and friendships. We believe our staff knows our students needs best when seeking to balance classroom needs within a grade. We have utmost respect that all of our Southeast teachers will provide an environment where your child can succeed both academically and spiritually. Therefore, we do not grant parent requests. Our classroom lists will be available to parents and students at Meet the Teacher.

5.17 Pets

Parents should know that pets are not allowed anywhere on the property of Southeast Christian School.

5.18 Student Belongings from Home

Labeling personal items including clothing, calculators, special pencils, PE clothes, hoodies, etc greatly simplifies returning items misplaced or lost. Southeast Christian School is not responsible for any personal belongings that children bring to school and discourage children from bringing games, technology, toys, sports equipment or any other personal items without express approval from the classroom teacher. Any lost, stolen, or broken items will be the parent's responsibility, not the school's. Children are asked to not bring money unless it is required for a special event. If money is brought, the school is not responsible if it is lost prior to being given to the appropriate person.

5.19 Distance Learning

Distance learning is currently offered on a case-by-case basis pending an approval process by the Principal. Families who desire to request Distance Learning for their student(s) should contact the building Principal. More information on our current policies surrounding distance learning can be found in the SCS Distance Learning Program Guide.

6 BEHAVIOR POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

6.1 Discipline

Being at Southeast Christian School is a privilege - not a right. In keeping with this privilege, Southeast Christian School has set basic rules and regulations as appropriate standards of behavior. Infractions of some rules are considered more serious than others. SCS follows a progressive model of discipline with the goal of restoration. Students and families who are not responsive to or in agreement with the progressive discipline process and restorative practices aligned to our statement of faith may face immediate termination of school services. *For a list of infractions by level, see Appendix E*.

Off-campus or after-hours behavior that negatively impacts the reputation of Southeast Christian School (examples - negative publicity in newspapers or TV news reports; inappropriate postings or content on web sites, social networking sites or apps; the hosting of any party where illegal contraband is available, used, or consumed) may result in disciplinary action at school.

Any student committing excessive major disciplinary violations during an academic year will be subject to the appropriate consequences. A meeting will be scheduled with the Principal, staff, and student and his/her parents to discuss the terms of the discipline problem and appropriate consequences.

Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports

Behavior expectations, reinforcement, and consistent accountability are an important piece of creating and maintaining a safe school environment and growing Christ centered students. The emphasis at Southeast Christian School is on maintaining an atmosphere, which is conducive to learning, working, achieving, and developing Christian values.

Southeast Christian School will establish a pyramid of supports and clearly articulated, developmentally appropriate behavior expectations to facilitate the ongoing development of the school behavior system and incorporate restorative justice practices in holding students accountable based on the nature of the infraction and appropriate developmental level. For example, a student who does not demonstrate a love for their neighbor and might choose a task that would allow them to 1. Repent 2. Receive forgiveness 3. Restore the relationship through an act of service to demonstrate the love for neighbors as appropriate to his/her age and the grade level expectations.

Southeast Christian School has the following school-wide rules and core values:

Respect Rules	Christ Centered Core Values:	What this looks like:	Biblical Basis
I will respect and honor God	Respect	I will be quiet and attentive during chapel. I will listen and engage in prayer.	1Co 6:20; John 20:31; 1Th 4:1; Phi 3:10; Pro 1:7; 1 Pet. 2:17
I will respect authority	Love	I will honor adult requests by staff and volunteers on campus.	Heb 13:17; Rom 13:1-6; 1Pe 2:13; Pro 19:20; Gal. 5:14
I will respect others and myself	Integrity	I will use kind words. I will love others more than myself.	Jam 4:6; Phi 2:3-10; Col 3:9; 1Co 6:20; 1 Co 13;Matt 19:30
I will respect learning	Responsibility	I will be on time, prepared, and ready to learn.	Gal 6:5; Mt 7:12; 2Ti 2:15; Rom 12:2; 1Sam. 12:24
I will respect property		I will not have food or drink on the carpet. I will not put my feet on the furniture or walls. I will respect the recess equipment. I will be a good steward.	Luke 16:12

6.2 Non-Violent Crisis Prevention and Intervention

Southeast Christian School has adopted The Crisis Prevention Institute's training and approach to de-escalation. The Crisis Prevention Institute's mission is "to reduce the likelihood and severity of workplace violence incidents. We advance our mission by training professionals in time-tested strategies, by equipping organizations with confident and productive employees, and by helping you give the people you serve a safe and compassionate environment in which to live, learn, and thrive. Through staff training, premium resources, and unrivaled support, we set the global standard for behaviour management training, and help you make life better for people all around the world." (https://www.crisisprevention.com/About-Us)

6.3 Bullying/Hazing

Definition: Bullying is different from playing around or normal conflict. Bullying is characterized by repeated, harmful acts by someone perceived as physically or psychologically more powerful, causing an imbalance of power. These acts are physical, verbal, or psychological attacks or intimidation directed against a victim who cannot properly defend him/herself because of size or strength or because the victim is outnumbered or less psychologically resilient. Bullying can happen in four main ways:

- Physical bullying, when a student uses physical force to hurt another student by hitting, pushing, shoving, kicking, taking a student's belongings or stealing their money.
- Verbal bullying, when a student uses words or gestures to humiliate another student by threatening, taunting, intimidating, insulting, using sarcasm, name-calling, teasing, slurs, graffiti, put downs or ridicule.
- Relational bullying, when a student isolates another student from their peer group through leaving them out, gossiping, spreading rumors or scapegoating.
- Cyberbullying, when a student uses a cell-phone, text messages, instant messaging, chats and social networking sites to bully another student in any of the ways described above.

Reporting: Students who believe that they have been subjected to conduct or threats of a bullying or harassing nature are encouraged to promptly report the matter to an adult staff member. Students who witness conduct or threats that are bullying in nature are also encouraged to report the matter to an adult staff member. Students are encouraged to report any/all incidents of bullying to Safe2Tell at www.safe2tell.org or (877-542-7233).

Procedures: All complaints will be directed to the school Principal and the Southeast Christian School Security Director. Complaints will be investigated and every effort will be made to protect the privacy of the parties involved in any complaint though statements will have to be taken to gather all relevant information. Southeast reserves the right to fully investigate every complaint and to notify parents/guardians of students involved and the appropriate government, i.e., law enforcement, officials, as individual circumstances warrant.

If the investigation confirms the allegations, corrective actions shall be taken. In addition, any student found to be responsible for bullying in violation of the definitions in this policy will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action up to and including suspension or dismissal. The severity of disciplinary action will be based upon the circumstances of the infraction.

6.4 Explanation of Consequences

- 1. Confiscation: First offense confiscations will be given to the Principal for return to the student at the end of the school day. For subsequent offenses, items will be given to the Principal and will be returned only to parents or guardians. Confiscated cell phones (1st offense) will be returned after a \$10 fee has been received by the Principal's office (charges will be placed on student's FACTS billing account and notice will be sent home). Continual abuse of policy will result in escalated penalties. Any faculty member may confiscate items that are not allowed.
- 2. Detention: Detention will be served during student lunch periods on the day of the offense (when possible). Students must be in their seats on time and sit silently until the end of the time period. Failure to serve a detention center assignment by the assigned date or failure to follow the expectations of detention will result in

reassignment of the detention plus another one. After two missed detentions, the student will face consequences as determined by the Principal. Any faculty member may assign detention handbook violations.

- 3. In-School Suspension (ISS): Students may be isolated in an in-school setting for up to five school days. The assignment of these days is at the discretion of the Principal. While in ISS, students may be required to complete a character-based curriculum and could also only receive 50% credit on all work completed depending on the severity of the infraction. (Example: an actual grade of a 90 on an assignment would be entered in the grade book as a 45.) Students placed in ISS will not be eligible to attend school-sponsored co-curricular activities while they are in ISS. Additionally, students who have been placed in ISS could forfeit educational field trip status for the remainder of the semester or a three-month time period (whichever is the longest) starting with the first day of the ISS assignment. ISS will be assigned through the Principal.
- 4. Out of School Suspension (OSS): Students may be sent home for up to five school days. The assignment of these days is at the discretion of the Principal. Students will receive no credit for any missed work, and teachers will not consider suspension status in scheduling or rescheduling tests, projects, or daily work. Students who are assigned OSS are prohibited from being on Southeast Christian School property or attending any Southeast Christian School activity until they have been readmitted to school. Therefore, students suspended on Friday will not be eligible to participate or attend school sponsored weekend events. Students placed on OSS will forfeit any field trip or class trip opportunities for the remainder of the semester in which the offense occurs. Students will also be placed on disciplinary probation. OSS will be assigned through the Principal.
- 5. Expulsion: Students may be expelled from Southeast Christian School for a prescribed amount of time or indefinitely. Expelled students are prohibited from ever being on Southeast Christian School property or at Southeast Christian School sponsored events. Expelled students who violate their expulsion status will be considered as trespassing and the appropriate authorities will be contacted. If a student is permitted to return to Southeast Christian School after expulsion, the student will return on disciplinary probation and remain on probation until the Principal determines the student may be removed from this status.

The following, non-exhaustive list are classified as immediately expellable offenses:

Bomb threat; Verbal threat; Harassment; Battery/Assault of a staff member; Possession of a weapon;

Detonation of an explosive; Possession and/or use of intoxicants or controlled substances; Arson; Extortion;

Sexual Offenses; Choices that are contrary to our statement of faith.

Additionally, students who fail to correct behavior and persist in violating the school's expectations for Christ-centered behavior will not be eligible for re enrollment and could be immediately expelled depending on the nature and severity of the infraction.

6.5 Uniform and Grooming

All students should label clothing for easy returning. We donate boxes of clothing, jackets, water bottles, and late supplies that are left around the school with no identification on them at the end of each quarter. Please label all of your child's items.

A person's character and relationship with God are reflected in all aspects of his/her life (including dress). Christians should especially be sensitive to MODESTY and appropriateness in attire. Sometimes, even Christian young people can be caught up in styles that represent philosophies and lifestyles that are not

Christ-like. Students are expected to dress according to their biological gender. Detailed, specific uniform requirements are explained below. Additionally, please note the following:

SCHOOL SPONSORED EVENTS - Southeast Christian School students are expected to maintain standards of cleanliness, modesty, neatness, and good taste both on campus and when attending school events off campus. Uniform for all extracurricular activities prohibits the wearing of short shorts and the exposure of any midriff skin.

UNIFORM ENFORCEMENT - All uniform policies will be in effect during official school hours and on the entire campus (activity classes or special theme days will be the only exceptions). Uniform will be checked during the first period each morning and those students who are not in compliance will be sent to the front office to change into appropriate attire.

Parents are encouraged to model modest and appropriate dress while at Southeast Christian School.

All Southeast Christian School uniform requirements are to be followed during the school day and on all school trips.

UNIFORM

General Grooming

- No extreme makeup, tattoos, decals, pencil or pen markings on the body
- No costumes except for school related events
- Clothing must be clean, fit properly (not skin tight) and be free of holes or tears that show skin
- No gang related clothing or attire
- Sunglasses, head coverings/do rags, caps, hats, and pocket-chains are unacceptable accessories
- Hair must be natural colored and not distracting to the learning environment as determined by the teacher and/or administration.

Standardized Uniform

Purpose: Our uniform reflects our desire to focus on the heart of the students rather than their image.

- Create a school atmosphere that is conducive to learning, free of unnecessary distractions and comparisons
- Ensure an orderly and safe learning environment
- Promote neatness and modesty
- Avoid the pitfalls of "cool" fads or styles
- Encourage the virtues of moderation and consideration of others
- Dress in a manner that glorifies God.

Uniform Guidelines

Bottoms:

- Skirts and shorts must be no shorter than two inches above the knee
- Pants and shorts are restricted to black, khaki, charcoal gray or navy
- Dresses, jumpers, and skirts are restricted to black, khaki, gray, navy, or SCS approved uniform plaid (available from Educational Outfitters).
- Pants are to be straight leg/ boot cut styles as shown in the provided pictorial guide (Appendix A).
- Shorts, pants, skirts, dresses jumpers must fit no more than 1 size larger and must cover all underclothing.
- Pants that are skin tight do not follow the uniform guidelines and are not permitted.

Tights, leggings:

- Tights and leggings are to be worn UNDER uniform appropriate skirts/jumpers ONLY and are restricted to solid colors in black, navy, white, or gray.
- Leggings / yoga pants / jeggings are not to be worn as pants, but only under the appropriate uniform bottoms.

Shirts:

- Shirts must be solid in color and are restricted to the following colors: royal blue, light blue, navy, white, black, and heather gray. Shirts must have collars and buttons. Brand logos smaller than 1" are allowed.
- Shoulders must be covered.
- Southeast Christian School approved and endorsed spirit wear shirts may be worn on Fridays only.
- All students must purchase a short sleeve, royal blue polo with the school logo from Education Outfitters which is to be worn on field trips and for special events.

Outerwear:

Outerwear items may only be worn outdoors. Indoor sweaters without a hood in the following colors
may be worn in class: navy, black, gray, royal blue, or white. Southeast spirit wear sweatshirts can be
worn when the classrooms are chilly. All hoods must be off in the building.

Footwear:

Shoes should be appropriate for safe playground use and appropriate for a school setting. For health
and safety, closed-toe/closed-heel shoes are required. Appropriate style shoes include, but are not
limited to: tennis shoes/sneakers, loafers, simple hiking boots and dress shoes with heels no more than
2 inches. Tennis shoes are best as they are able to be worn on the gym floor. Tennis shoes must be
worn on PE days.

PE Uniforms for 6th, 7th, and 8th Grades Only:

PE uniforms are to be purchased by parents through Educational Outfitters. These uniforms are mandatory for participation and completion of Southeast Christian School PE.

Uniform Non-Compliance:

Issues not specifically stated above that contradict any purpose of this uniform will be deemed inappropriate. While a student may be "technically" in compliance with the uniform, they may be in violation of the spirit or purposes of the uniform. If, in the opinion of the Principal, staff or faculty member, a student is in violation of the policies or purposes of the uniform and uniform, it is expected that they come into immediate compliance. Students may be asked to come into compliance before going to class.

Spirit Days on Fridays

Unless notified differently, all students will be allowed to wear the regular school uniform or dress in spirit wear on Fridays. Spirit wear is defined as: any shirt with Southeast Christian School logo or uniform shirt and jeans or appropriate_length shorts. No jeans with rips, tears or frays that show skin are allowed. It is not intended to be a sloppy dress day. If the student's dress is inappropriate or causes a problem, it will be handled according to the core expectation and core values of school discipline outlined in the document.

Co-Curricular and Field Trip Uniform

Uniform is required for all field trips and school-sponsored trips unless specified by the trip sponsor and approved by the Principal. The trip sponsor will coordinate and communicate expected dress per the needs of the trip. For the safety of our students, teachers may request for all students to wear the royal blue polo with the school logo while away from campus.

6.5 Approach to Infractions

Teacher Managed	Office Managed
-Picking on/aggravating another student -Cheating/ plagiarism -Chewing gum/eating out of designated area -Uniform -Excessive talking/minor class disruption -Horseplay -Littering -Lack of supplies -Lying -Minor disrespect (smart comment, etc.) -Minor theft (pencil, paper, etc.) -No homework -Off-task behavior -Playground safety -Suggestive language -Transition horseplay (hallways to/from class) -Minor profanity/blasphemy -Minor technology infraction -Electronic devices/misuse -Dishonoring God	-Continual academic dishonesty -Dishonoring God -Disrespect for authority -Abuse of facilities -Bullying -Persistent misbehavior - severe -Assault -Destruction of school/church/playground property -Drugs/alcohol/tobacco use or possession -Gang related infractions -Major class disruption -Major violence-physical aggression/bullying -Severe profanity -Sexual harassment -Truancies/tardies beginning with 6th occurrence -Verbal, Written or Implied threats of staff or students -Weapons -Pornography -Major infractions of Acceptable Use Policy -Inappropriate social media postings -Actions contrary to statement of faith
Teacher Toolbox	Possible Consequences
-Warning -Prayer -Parent call -Parent conference -Reteach the expectation -Restorative practice -Extra assignments -Loss of privileges/rewards -Campus service - cleaning duty -Isolation w/in the classroom -Detention with Teacher -Time Out -Written Apology/Reflection -Incentive System -Staff ideas brainstormed with students	-Conference with the Principal -Detention -Loss of major rewards/field trips game privileges -Restorative practice -Community service (on campus) -Safety Plan (limiting the freedom in the general ed setting) -Behavior Intervention Plan -In school/out of school suspension -No Contact Contract -Confiscation of Items -Loss of participation in graduation -Law Enforcement Referral for any conduct punishable as a misdemeanor or felony -Expulsion from school

6.6 Drug Prevention

The Executive Director and/or Principal may partner with local law enforcement as necessary.

6.7 Electronic Devices

Students may not have a cell phone visible or audible during the day unless directed by staff. Students may possess active electronic devices during school hours only for the purpose of learning. Electronic devices as learning tools will be a teacher decision. For those classrooms that do not allow personal electronic devices for learning in their classroom, students must keep their device turned off during school hours. Devices may include: iPads, Kindle, laptop, Smart phones, and Smart watches. Any student caught using an electronic

device without teacher permission will have their device taken to the Principal's office for parent pick up and will be assessed a \$10 fee the first time, \$25 fee the second time, and will not be allowed to bring the device back after the third occasion. Student devices may be searched at any time with reasonable suspicion of unapproved activity.

6.8 Food, Drink, and Chewing Gum

Food and drink should only be consumed in designated areas. Students may carry a water bottle with them on campus but all other drinks are prohibited. Chewing gum is not allowed on campus.

6.9 Respect for Property

All teacher property (desks, grade books, computers, file cabinets, etc.) is off-limits to students and is reserved for use by teachers only. Students are expected to follow the campus wide respect rules in the sanctuary, on the playground and across all settings while at or with Southeast Christian School. We are called to be stewards, and respect for property is part of that. Students are expected to clean up after themselves. Students should not be in the work rooms nor beyond the locked brown doors of the school without adult supervision.

Students should respect the church and sanctuary. Students should not take pens or cards from the sanctuary seat backs nor write on them for non-church use. Students should keep their feet off the seats and respect that the sanctuary is a place of worship.

6.10 Search and Seizure (At School, School-Sponsored Events, or In School Uniform)

The Southeast Christian School Administration reserves the right to search a student's purse, backpack, locker, technology devices or person with reasonable suspension of inappropriate activity. Questionable or illegal items discovered during a search may be seized and the student subjected to disciplinary action. Any item brought to Southeast Christian School is open to search and seizure.

6.11 Telephone Usage

While classes are in session, students are allowed to use only the phone in the school office.

6.12 Technology

All parents and students will sign a Technology Use Agreement (Appendix B) for the purpose of setting forth certain terms and conditions between Southeast Christian School and the student for the use of all school technology resources and their technology device. The infusion of technology into classroom experiences represents an outstanding opportunity for Southeast Christian School students and presents challenges for the faculty and administration as we continue to enhance the curriculum. Use of all digital devices must be in support of education and research and must be consistent with the goals and objectives of Southeast Christian School. It is our goal to model and teach ethical and responsible use of technology. It must be recognized that the development of school policy to govern technology will be a fluid and continual process. As policy is revised, the revisions will be communicated to students for immediate implementation, and will be added to the Technology Use Agreement on an as-needed basis.

Students should use equipment only with appropriate permission and guidance. Correct configuration, storage, security, and charging of devices and equipment is expected. Students are responsible for the security of devices assigned to them personally and for password security to accounts used by the school,

especially access to networks and confidential information. Students will be liable for damage to school owned technology when due to misuse. We have a finite number of resources that we must all be diligent in caring for as stewards. Training resources will be provided.

Possible charges for damages to iPads/Chromebooks/Teacher Devices:

- Students may be liable for the full cost of repair or replacement of a device if damage is a direct result
 of their negligence or abuse. Accidental damage does not necessarily exempt the student from this
 policy.
- \$25 cleanup fee if devices require excessive attention and cleaning due to food, grease, large scratches, liquid damage, etc.
- Accessories (cables/chargers/cases): 100% replacement cost

6.13 Online Media Policy

Southeast Christian School recognizes that many different social networks exist on the internet. Millions of people, including our students, parents, faculty and staff utilize one or more of these networks on a daily basis for both professional and personal purposes. These services provide different methods of communicating and interacting with other users, in both public and private ways. Due to the popularity of social networking sites and the way they can facilitate effective and efficient communications between users, the use of social networking in connection with Southeast Christian School activities presents many opportunities for enhancing the experience of our students and their families.

We must recognize, however, that without proper controls these communications are often unlimited, potentially affording access by unknown third parties. We must also acknowledge that the nature of social networking sites leaves open the possibility of abuse and misuse (including our students and their parents), necessitating the following standards of conduct for all individuals connected with Southeast Christian School.

Ethics and Responsibility:

When an individual is using online social media (of any variety) and identifies themselves as a student, parent, faculty or staff member of Southeast Christian School, that individual must always bear in mind that the material he or she posts reflects upon the school. It is imperative that all students, parents, faculty, and staff conduct themselves in an ethical and responsible manner when using online social media.

- They should at all times attempt to be accurate, truthful, and respectful in any public postings.
- Use of school logo, pictures and/or videos of our students and faculty may not be posted without permission.
- Based upon dynamic risk and experience or access to devices, some installed software may be prohibited on campus.
- Parents, faculty, students and staff should not post malicious, threatening, and/or slanderous statements about Southeast Christian School school, students, staff, faculty or parents. Such posts may be considered grounds for removal and separation from Southeast Christian School. (Matthew 18 principle should be applied when a disagreement occurs by going to the source rather than a social media posting.)
- Faculty and staff should not friend students unless for educational purposes as a classroom.

6.14 Playground Rules

Children must be taught how to play just as they must be taught how to read and write. Sportsmanship, courtesy, and fair play are not innate. They must be learned. Read these to your children, and review them frequently, if needed.

Rules for everyone in all areas of the playground:

- I will respect God by my behavior in play and work
- I will respect authority
- I will respect myself
- I will respect others with sportsmanship and positive play
- I will respect materials on the playground by not throwing sticks, rocks, wood chips, or any other objects.
- I will respect property
- I will be safe

Play boundaries

- The playground area is the area within the tall fence on the north end of the building.
- When a P.E. class is on the blacktop, students at recess should stay in the smaller fenced playground area.

Swings

- Swings are to be used only while seated.
- One at a time on each swing.
- Do not jump off of the swing.
- Do not throw the swings over the top.
- Stay away from the swinging area when someone is swinging.

Slides

- Slide down only on your bottom.
- Only go up the stairs and not the slide portion of the slide.
- Do not jump off until you are all the way to the bottom.
- Only one at a time on the slide.
- You are to sit up with your feet and hands in the proper position when you go down the slide.
- Do not climb on the outside of the slide.

Jungle gym/ monkey bars

- Be cautious at all times
- Climb off carefully, do not jump off.
- Do not stand on the top.

Chase games

- You are to "catch" each other by tagging, not by pulling or pushing each other.
- You are not to tackle each other.

Ball games

- Ball games need to be played on the blacktop.
- Football must be tag football only.

Snacks

• Snacks are allowed; all trash must be picked up.

Snow mounds

• Students should not play on snow mounds during recess.

Boots/Shoes

• If the amount of snowfall requires boots, only students with boots may play on areas where snowfall is accumulated. Those without appropriate footwear need to stay on the shoveled/plowed areas.

Playground Entry and Ice

Since the entry area gets heavily trafficked, please use the bucket of snow melt near the exit to the
playground. This area will remain open as long as the problem can be easily addressed to ensure
student safety.

6.15 Public Display of Affection

Students engaging in inappropriate public displays of affection will incur consequences. As age appropriate, students are expected to refrain from any public displays of affection while on campus or at any school sponsored function or activity. Public displays of affection (PDA) include: hand holding, embracing, lap sitting, or kissing.

7 ACADEMIC POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

7.1 Expected Student Outcomes

From a distinctively Christian perspective, all staff demonstrate a commitment to the development of the whole child—spiritually, intellectually, physically, emotionally, and socially (Luke 2:52). The following school-wide expected student outcomes serve as the foundation for instruction and curriculum.

Spiritual Development:

- Student will be able to understand and commit to a personal relationship with Jesus Christ.
- Student will be able to personally respond to carry out the Great Commission locally and around the world in a culturally sensitive manner.
- Student will be able to know, understand, and apply God's word to daily life.
- Student will be able to articulate and defend their Christian worldview while having a basic understanding of opposing worldviews.
- Student will be able to understand the worth of every human being as created in the image of God.
- Student will possess apologetic skills to defend their faith.

Intellectual Development:

- Student will be well prepared in all academic disciplines and skilled in reading, writing, speaking, listening, and thinking.
- Student will be proficient in mathematics and science.
- Student will have a knowledge and understanding of people, events, and movements in history, and the cultures of their people and places.
- Student will appreciate literature and the arts and understand how they express and shape the student's beliefs and values.
- Student will be able to utilize resources including technology to find, analyze, and evaluate information.
- Student will be committed to life-long learning.
- Student will be able to explore, create, experiment, plan, analyze, reason, investigate, and question.

Social/Emotional Development

- Student will be able to embrace and practice justice, mercy, and peacemaking in family and society.
- Student will be able to value intellectual inquiry.
- Student will have the skills to question, solve problems, and make wise decisions.
- Student will be able to have an appreciation for the natural environment and practice responsible stewardship of God's creation.
- Student will be able to enjoy and initiate friendships with a variety of individuals.
- Student will be able to take pride in their work.
- Student will be able to show empathy and kindness to others.
- Student will be able to engage with others in learning activities.

Physical Development

- Student will be able to recognize that their body is created by God and that special responsibility is needed to care for it.
- Student will engage in physical activities meant to promote long term habits and health.

7.2 Philosophy of Curriculum and Instruction

Our Collective Belief and Commitments:

We will model, support, inspire, and foster

- A Christ-centered and infused instructional environment with a daily Bible study and weekly chapel attendance that fosters an authentic relationship and identity in Christ
- A growing understanding of the nature of God and the Bible and a deepening discernment of ideas that are consistent or inconsistent with truths of scripture
- A safe and collaborative environment that fosters participation in academic and extracurricular activities
- Curiosity and a love of learning
- Students to reach their personal best through goal setting and positive coaching
- Challenging, differentiated opportunities for students to demonstrate understanding of higher level thinking
- The spiritual gifts and talents of all students
- The Goals, Values, and Expectations of the Southeast Christian Learning Community as united professionals with Christ at our center

Guaranteed Viable Curriculum (GVC)

The collective agreement of our Southeast Advisory and Leadership Team specifies that staff will:

- 1. Infuse the word of God and biblical principles throughout all instruction.
- 2. Use a variety of biblical and secular resources to support a growing understanding of the nature of God and the Bible and a deepening discernment of ideas that are consistent or inconsistent with truths of scripture.
- 3. As relevant to our work, some of the Colorado State Academic Standards are the floor in regards to grade level minimum expectations. We do not plan our lessons based on the state standards. We plan our lessons based on our thematic units of instruction designed by our staff utilizing a variety of Christian and secular texts and curriculum resources.

Southeast Christian School uses a variety of curriculum resource publishers including, but not limited to: ACSI-Purposeful Design, Bob Jones, Daily 5, The Daily Cafe, Learning Ally, Raz Kids, Khan Academy, Kendall Hunt, Evan Moor, Prentice Hall, Houghton Mifflin, Scholastic, Reading A to Z, Studies Weekly, and Read Naturally.

Personalized and Differentiated Learning

Student voice and choice inspires students to be passionate about expressing their own learning. Students connect their own learning with interests, learning styles, passions, talents, and aspirations with regard to personal goals based on performance data, grade level standards, content, and responsibility through authentic student driven assessment and/or performance assessment directly linked to their own learning goals and needs to achieve growth.

Authentic Assessments and Body of Evidence

Through the use of authentic student created products and/or performance assessments, teachers can assess student work according to a Grading Rubric Criteria (GRC or Rubric) which can incorporate thinking levels, Spiritual Growth, 21st Century Skills, Technology Skills, Extended Evidence Outcomes, Content, Standards, Skills (grammar, usage, clarity, introduction,etc), Effort/Perseverance through editing and taking feedback from peers/teachers to refine the work, etc. Students can help create rubrics as well as choose the path or product according to their learning styles as well as teacher directed expectations/products. Student Voice and Choice is a critical part of creating the body of evidence that represents each student's growth for the year.

Brain Based Instruction

Learning in accordance with the way the brain is naturally designed to learn. It is a multi-disciplinary approach pulling from chemistry, neurology, psychology, sociology, genetics, biology, and computational neurobiology. It is a way of thinking about learning. Simply stated, it is a way to construct learning considering the way each brain in each individual learns. (Eric Jensen)

As a school, we will be focusing on how the brain learns best and what we can do as educators to create environments that are the most conducive to learning as well as the methods that knowledge is constructed. Learning styles, Bloom's Taxonomy (Higher Order Thinking Skills), Socratic Questioning, Balanced Literacy, Writing Across the Curriculum, content integration, student inquiry, and increased emphasis on critical thinking skills are all tied into the theory and practice of brain based instruction.

Balanced Literacy

The Daily Five is a balanced approach for teaching reading and writing using what we know about best practices. Daily 5 structure, in coordination with The Daily CAFE, encourages engagement and ownership of the students' learning through goal setting. CAFE gradually releases new skills, allowing for modeled teaching, guided practice and independent practice. Guided reading groups and book clubs are used to provide individual teaching points to small groups of children. Phonemic awareness, phonics, fluency, vocabulary and comprehension are taught throughout our K-5 classrooms in a manner that will be meaningful and relevant to students.

Balanced Technology Integration

Southeast Christian School values the personal connection between instructor and student. Technology supports high quality instruction methodologies but in no way supplants core classroom instruction. The infusion of technology into classroom experiences represents an outstanding opportunity for Southeast Christian School students and presents challenges for the faculty and administration as we continue to enhance the curriculum. Use of all digital devices must be in support of education and research and must be consistent with the goals and objectives of Southeast Christian School. It is our goal to model and teach ethical and responsible use of technology. It must be recognized that the development of school policy to govern technology will be a fluid and continual process.

Learning Styles

We know that students learn best in the manner that his/her brain receives and retains information prior to processing and expressing learning. We want to honor learning style differences while supporting students in growing in areas that are not preferences. This requires a balanced approach of providing opportunities in areas of strength and creating safety in expressing learning through an area of growth. Learning styles are typically determined through observation and natural student preferences expressed through a variety of learning opportunities where students are given voice and choice to express learning.

- Tactile/Kinesthetic: Student prefers physical input. They learn best by doing. Hands on first before moving to abstract.
- Visual: Learner prefers to see it first. The mental picture helps support the concrete application.
- Verbal: Learner prefers using words, both in speech and writing.
- Auditory/Musical: Learner prefers to hear/sing the concept prior to moving to a concrete or visual construction of the concept.
- Technological: Learner prefers integrated technology.
- Logical (Mathematical): Learner prefers using logic, reasoning and systems.
- Social (interpersonal): Learner prefers to learn in groups or with other people.
- Solitary: Learner prefers to work alone and use self-study.

7.3 Southeast Christian School Special Education and Intervention Services

Vision

Southeast Christian School cherishes all children and has a heart to provide Christian education to children with special needs. It is our desire, and we believe God's desire, to reach out and serve all the children that we can, including those with learning challenges. It is the desire of our intervention and support services staff to help each student reach his or her God given potential through targeted interventions and classroom supports.

We are not able to service every child with special needs due to the limitations on our finances, expertise, size, facilities, etc. Admission will be based on the extent to which our resources can help your child succeed. Your communication to us about your child's needs and submission of records and testing information will help us better determine our ability to accommodate his/her challenges. In an effort to make the most informed decision regarding our ability to serve a student, testing must be completed prior to admission. All documentation of prior Early Childhood Services, 504 services, Behavior Intervention Plan, or Individual Education Plan must be received prior to admission.

Southeast Christian School is unable to provide speech therapy, occupational therapy, or physical therapy, amongst similar therapies and must be arranged by the parent with an outside organization should these services be needed.

As a private school, Southeast Christian School does not receive any state or federal funding to support a special needs program. Therefore, Southeast Christian School is not legally bound to follow existing educational plans; however, the goals and recommendations will be considered in the development of an Individual Accommodation Plan.

Policies

All students who receive pull out intervention services, behavior support, or special education services are expected to pay additional tuition based on the intensity and duration of services by the Southeast Christian School support staff. All support services availability is dependent on enrollment and staffing and subject to change from year to year. Intervention services include some individual and small group interventions.

If a parent is unwilling or unable to agree to the level of services recommended by the Southeast Christian School Administration and Support Team, the school may recommend that a different school be considered for their child's needs.

Multi-tiered Support Systems (MTSS), Differentiated Learning

A systematic approach to providing a seamless problem solving process that enhances the learning of all children by using consultation and support among all educators-combining the unique talents of both general educators and specialists for the success of ALL students. (In plain English, teachers across the school will be collaborating for student solutions both behaviorally and instructionally and blocking out time for specific instruction to students who are not demonstrating mastery of foundational skills or in need of extensions for advanced academia.) What this means to our teachers and service providers is that students will be pulled from class or supported during inclusion through a strategic method of service provision and supports.

To begin, all students are assessed with universal screeners: STAR, Math and Literacy probes, DRA2, etc.

Then, students are assigned specific support groups based on need for a 20 to 30 minute block of time. There are three levels to MTSS Interventions: Tier 1 which is within the classroom time specific to the instructor based on classroom performance; Tier 2 which is either during core instruction or a pull out time and targeted to specific deficits in learning or extensions to push rigor for advanced students; and Tier 3 which is the most intensive and prescriptive intervention provided during pull out to target learning deficits in literacy, writing, or math.

What this means to the students in need of intervention is that they will have flexible, targeted intervention that is brain based and research based to address specific needs according to his/her diagnosed area of weakness in addition to the fluid provision of supports throughout their day. MTSS are outlined under federal and state umbrellas. (Click here <u>for the state link.</u>) Parents are a critical part of this process and will be included in problem solving meetings to develop the plans for students in need of intensive intervention.

Special Education and Outside Service Providers Policy

Behavioral, Academic, Physical and Social Emotional Needs

- Southeast Christian School accepts children with special needs on a case-by-case basis. Prior to enrollment, Southeast's administration will review all Care Plans (including medical or psychological) and any existing behavioral, medical, and academic plans to determine if the health, behavioral and educational needs of a particular child can be met by our support team. Administration will go over the IEP, health plan, or 504 with parents, observe the child, and consult with the teacher to determine if attendance at Southeast Christian School is a good fit and acceptable accommodations can be made.
- Ongoing communication between parents, teachers and administration will occur, when needed during
 the year, to share progress, concerns and to problem solve. If your child receives early intervention
 services, please inform the teacher and provide a copy of the IEP, health plan, or 504 so that we may
 provide a community of care. Once accepted, a student may be released from enrollment should the
 school and care team determine that specific needs are unable to be met at Southeast Christian
 School.
- Should a student be accepted on the basis of parents providing outside service support or paying for a Southeast employee's support, the support must continue through the duration of enrollment unless agreed upon by the Southeast administrative team.
- Further assessments may be required.

- Southeast Christian School collaborates at the parent's discretion and expense with many outside service providers to best meet the needs of students.
- All outside service providers must be vetted by Southeast's Human Resources and follow Southeast's professional guidelines.

7.4 Academic Integrity

Maintaining academic integrity is of vital importance for Southeast Christian School. Students must play an active role in maintaining their own personal academic integrity as well as the integrity of the school. Cheating and plagiarism are unacceptable behaviors that carry severe consequences. In order to discourage plagiarism/cheating, the following steps will be taken:

- 1. On the first offense, the student will lose credit on the assignment or test and parents/guardians will be notified.
- 2. On the second offense, the student will lose credit on the assignment or test and the student will serve an In-School Suspension.
- 3. On the third offense, the student will lose credit on the assignment or test and the student will be recommended for expulsion.

Note that the above steps will apply even if the incidences of cheating/plagiarism occur in different classes and/or different school years.

CHEATING

While the definition of cheating may seem obvious, technological advances have made cheating easier and possibly blurred the line between acceptable and unacceptable behavior.

The following guidelines give a general overview of what constitutes "cheating":

- 1. Copying, reproducing, or representing any or all of another person's work as your own.
- 2. Using notes on a quiz or test without the consent of the teacher, including digitized notes being carried in a calculator, cell phone, or electronic device.
- 3. Sharing any information about an assignment, quiz, or test with students from a different class period. This would also include using camera phones and text messaging to pass information along to another student.
- 4. Acquiring or using completed and graded assignments, quizzes, or tests from other students or from students from previous years. It is "cheating" to use a sibling's work from a previous school year. Teachers will be encouraged not to reuse the same quizzes and tests repeatedly. Regardless, possessing past work, quizzes, and tests is defined as "cheating".
- 5. Sharing or giving homework to another student.

Receiving "help" from another student is generally unacceptable unless the student providing the assistance is designated as a "tutor." Teachers will expect that students will only be receiving assistance from teachers, tutors, or parents. Students are only allowed to "work together" on an assignment with the expressed consent of the teacher who gave the assignment.

PLAGIARISM

Plagiarism is simply defined as "claiming another's work as your own." Given the easily accessible nature of information (internet, digital libraries, etc.), it has become relatively simple to pass off another person's work as your own.

The following actions constitute "plagiarism":

- 1. Copying verbatim the work of another individual.
- 2. Copying and pasting sections of work from the internet or another person's work.
- 3. Not referencing or citing quoted or paraphrased text in a paper or essay.
- 4. Using online term papers, book reports, or essays.

Teachers will instruct students on the proper methods of citation and referencing to help avoid plagiarism.

7.5 Progress Reporting

Student grades and progress are reported through the school's student information system, FACTS-SIS. Parents can access grades and quarterly report cards through FACTS-SIS. Hard-copy report cards are only available by request. Quarterly report cards are only available until the next quarterly report card is published.

7.6 Explanation of Grading Scale

Transitional Kindergarten and Kindergarten

- 4 Highly Proficient: exceeds grade-level expectations; demonstrates an advanced understanding of content knowledge or skills.
- 3 Proficient: consistently meets grade-level expectations; demonstrates an adequate understanding of content knowledge or skills.
- 2 Approaching Proficient: occasionally meets grade-level expectations; demonstrates partial understanding of content knowledge or skills.
- 1 Below Proficient: rarely meets grade-level expectations; demonstrates a minimal understanding of content knowledge or skills.

First – Eighth Grades

Grades are issued quarterly and are designated as A,B,C,D,F, and I. They represent academic work as follows:

98-100	A+	Superior and outstanding performance
93-97	Α	
90-92	A-	
87-89	B+	Good performance
83-86	В	
80-82	B-	
77-79	C+	Average performance
73-76	С	
70-72	C-	
67-69	D+	Weak, but passing performance
63-66	D	
60-62	D-	
59 and below	F	Unacceptable performance

I Incomplete*; W Withdrawn; S Satisfactory; U Unsatisfactory; NA Not applicable (* Incompletes are only given in special circumstances approved by the Principal.)

7.7 Retention

A student who fails a course may be required to repeat the course, attend a summer program approved by the Executive Director and/or Principal, and/or receive tutoring to strengthen skills prior to being promoted to the next grade. Retention is used only in certain cases, when necessary and appropriate and approved by the Executive Director and/or Principal.

7.8 Parent/Teacher Conferences

There will be two parent-teacher conferences a year; one in the Fall and one in the Spring. Special conferences can be called by the teacher or may be requested by parents.

7.9 Standardized Testing

Every April Southeast Christian School administers a standardized assessment for middle school students. Additionally, the STAR universal assessment for grades K-8 will be given at the beginning, middle, and end of year to monitor student growth and address instruction needs for intervention or extension. Testing results are placed in the cumulative records. Testing is required by administration for all students. For more information on STAR, see: https://www.renaissance.com/services/parent-resources/assessments-testing/

7.10 Academic Probation

All students will be subject to academic review during their enrollment at Southeast Christian School. A minimum average of 70 in each course is expected. Students with averages calculated below 70 in one or more core content courses in a quarter will be placed on academic probation. Students on academic probation may not participate in extracurricular activities and may be assigned any of the following: tutoring, remediation, designated work or make-up days, and/or accountability measures to support executive functioning. If a student remains on academic probation for more than one quarter, SCS reserves the right to unenroll the student at semester and/or not recommend for re-enrollment.

7.11 Eligibility Standards [Co-Curricular Participation]

Co-curricular participation is a privilege. Students are expected to maintain academic, attendance, and behavior expectations in order to participate. If a student is placed in ISS (In School Suspension) or suspended from attending school, that student may not participate in a co-curricular event or practice for 24 hrs or as indicated by the Principal.

In order for students to be eligible for school extra-curricular activities, including school trips, they must have at least a '70' in all classes and be in good disciplinary standing. Students who attend extra-curricular school trips that have fees associated must also be current in their financial obligations to Southeast Christian School.

Eligibility is checked every Monday. Students are considered ineligible if they have; two or more classes with grades lower than a C, or any failing grade. Students are given until the end of the school day on Wednesday to submit a correction form, signed by their teacher, if they wish to be removed from the ineligible list. Any student who fails to complete a Corrections Form on time, remains ineligible and will be held out of competition Monday through Sunday the following week. The Athletic Director may extend this deadline to accommodate non-student days at his/her discretion. Students MAY NOT participate in athletic practice or games while ineligible. Students who are placed on ineligible status are not eligible for fee refunds.

7.12 Athletics Policy

Mission: To develop athletic skills, character, and sportsmanship in a Christ-like manner for the glory of God.

Competitive athletic opportunities for Southeast Christian School students begin in Grade 6. Southeast Christian School is a member school of the Front Range Charter League (https://playpass.com/FRCL). Athletics are not part of the tuition structure and, as such, the athletics program is a 100% fee-based program. All fees are used to pay program costs including: referees, uniforms, coaching stipends, equipment, and awards. As with all other schools in our conference, homeschool players are welcome to attend and participate. Southeast Christian School Athletics is a developmental program - meaning we don't make cuts. It is our goal to place students on teams best suited to their development. Both A Team and B Team programs are dependent on the number of total participants.

It is expected that all students, parents, and athletic event attendees follow the league's expectations of sportsmanship. Failure to do so may require removal from current and future athletic events.

7.13 Grade Computation Procedures

Grade computations for Southeast Christian School middle school students will be based upon a weighted system. In all core classes (English, Math, Science, History, Bible), end of year exams may carry a weight of up to 10 percent (10%) of the total grade.

In classes that are performance and/or participation based (Chorus, Art, P.E. and Athletics, etc.), these percentages may not apply.

7.14 Student Recognition and Awards

Honor Roll (grades 4-8)

Honor Roll will be awarded once per semester. To qualify academically for the honor roll, the following GPA standards apply:

- High Honor Roll GPA ≥ 3.75
- Honor Roll GPA ≥ 3.25

Awards

In addition to the recognition aforementioned, students may be recognized in other ways reflecting the school motto and values of Southeast Christian school. This recognition may include but is not limited to the following:

Title of Award	Description / Examples
Christian Leadership	Character Counts, Bible Leadership, Worship Leaders, Integrity, Respect, Responsibility, Love
Excellence	Honor Roll, Improvement, Behavior, Perseverance, AR Awards, taking initiative, Fine Arts, Sports, STAR growth, Athletics Awards, ACSI Awards; Valor Math, LUHI Scholarship (top 2 8th graders based on MS GPA), exceed SMART goal
Service	Presidential Volunteer Service Award, Serving, Service around the school,

	selfless
Eagle Award	All around award: Arts; Athletics; Academics; Service; Excellence; Christian Leadership

7.15 Late Work Policy

In an effort to teach personal responsibility and progress toward higher education norms, we have adopted a graduated late work policy.

TK - 2nd

Students who fail to complete the work will be asked to use class time to complete any missing or incomplete assignments.

3rd - 5th

Late work not caused by absence from school will be subject to academic penalty as determined by the teacher. Any work that is late by one day will be immediately reduced by 10% each day it is late, not to exceed 25% total deduction.

6th - 8th

Late work not caused by absence from school will be subject to academic penalty as determined by the teacher. Any work that is late by one or more days will be immediately reduced by 10% each day it is late. Late work submitted after the 10 day window, will not be eligible for credit and will be permanently recorded as a '0.'

7.16 Homework Guiding Statement and Principles

Homework Philosophy

Homework is a way to refine and extend learning into the home setting. What is sent home is a direct reflection of our values as a school. Teachers and parents can both use this powerful instructional tool.

Our homework policy will follow National Guidelines and research based recommendations by researcher Harris Cooper: 10-20 minutes per night in the first grade in addition to twenty minutes of reading, and an additional 10 minutes per grade level thereafter (e.g., 20 minutes for second grade, 80 minutes for eighth). (see *Review of Educational Research*, 2006.) These times will serve as the maximum time for homework per grade. Should your child have excessive amounts of homework, you are encouraged to connect with the teacher to discern time management issues or communicate needs.

Guiding Principles

- Homework should be reflective of personalization and differentiation as reasonable.
- Homework should be relevant and meaningful vs busy work/a chore.
- Homework can be practice such as math facts much like an athlete practices for a game, homework can be used to prepare students for assessments and future learning.
- Homework should not be out of compliance but as an authentically engaging opportunity.
- Reading at home is a school wide expectation for all students with a minimum of 20 minutes dedicated Read To, Read With, or Listen To with an opportunity for reflection/retell/discussion.
- Middle school students will need to read 450 pages per quarter from an assigned genre.
- Homework could be a time to capture real world opportunities such as cooking, creating the weekly
 family shopping list, writing a letter to Grandma, graphing family exercise or activities, interviewing dad
 about a topic, etc.

Myths About Homework

- The assignment of homework by teachers or schools is a sign of a rigorous program. (Most homework is low level recall and knowledge level.)
- Good teachers give homework; kids who do homework are good kids.

The Truth About Homework

- Can teach responsibility, but is the homework for ritualized engagement or authentic engagement? Is
 ritualized engagement or compliance the primary purpose of the homework? If so, I would question the
 value being taught and reinforced to the student.
- Can be reinforcement and a time for personal reflection.
- Can be family centered time to explore the daily learning.
- Can be time to work towards a personal goal.
- Can be authentic and engaging if we hit the higher level thinking with the work we are asking the kids to do.

Here is a link to some recommended resources and activities that might benefit your student. Click here.

7.17 Test Make-Up Policy

If a student is absent and unaware of a test, he/she will be allowed at least one class period after returning to take a makeup test. If the student was present when the test was announced or posted on FACTS-SIS he/she must take the test(s) the first day back to school. This rule may be amended at teacher discretion.

7.18 Middle School Community Service Requirement

Southeast Christian School encourages all students and families to be actively involved in their local community - service is a key component of our vision statement. As such, middle school students will be required to complete 10 hours of community service (5 hours on campus, and 5 hours off campus) outside of our regularly scheduled service days. These hours will be logged in the FACTS-SIS portal.

7.19 Graduation

Graduating students who have failed one or more core content areas will not participate in 8th grade graduation unless: all work is completed successfully and submitted to the core content teacher prior to graduation, an alternative plan for gaining credit can be created at the core teacher's discretion, or an Executive Director approved alternative online class is taken successfully. A student will not participate in graduation if the core content credit is not gained.

Additionally, students who have major disciplinary violations risk the surrender of their participation in 8th grade graduation.

7.20 Highly Qualified and Accredited Instructional Staff

Southeast Christian School is dual accredited by the Association of Christian Schools International (ACSI) and Cognia. All of our instructional staff are degreed teachers who have to maintain both Biblical Studies and Instruction Methods Continuing Education Classes in addition to their personal involvement in an Evangelical Church as part of their personal accreditation requirements.

Teacher Professional Growth and Learning

The purpose of the teacher evaluation and feedback system is to support positive growth and development amongst the Southeast Christian School staff to better meet the instructional and spiritual needs of students. All staff will:

1. Participate in staff wide prayer and devotionals weekly

- 2. Actively participate in all campus professional development, peer observations, and peer exchanges.
- 3. Self-evaluate according to the Southeast Christian School staff evaluation rubric.
- 4. Create a professional growth plan proposing 2 primary goals aligned to Southeast Christian School annual goals and personal growth needs identified in the self-evaluation to support ongoing professional development to provide the highest quality instruction at Southeast Christian School
- 5. Participate in at least 2 informal walkthroughs and 1 formal observation with reflective feedback
- 6. Collaboratively create a body of evidence illustrating instructional practice and growth
- 7. Participate in reflective feedback sessions with the Principal and/or Executive Director
- 8. Participate in a summative review and growth analysis based on the ACSI, Cognia and State Evaluation models
- 9. Review final evaluation rating and set goals for continued growth
- 10. Maintain documentation and continuing education for ACSI Certification and/or State Certification

Southeast Advisory Leadership Team (SALT)

The Southeast Advisory Leadership Team (SALT) consists of a cross section of staff to support the Executive Director in establishing campus goals, systems, policies, curriculum tools, and desired outcomes for Southeast Christian School. The SALT has worked closely with the Executive Directorto create a clear vision, pathway, and accountability system for the work for the 20-21 school year. Our broad goals for Southeast Christian School are:

Professional Learning Communities (PLC)

Throughout the school year, teachers will participate in PLC's which provide staff development and an opportunity for teams to work collaboratively to achieve common goals. PLC work will ensure that we are collaborative and focused during planning and that staff development, planning, assessments, and instruction aligned with our core values. PLC's will offer teachers the opportunity to review data, calibrate rubrics and grading expectations, collaborate on planning, and design differentiated instruction in addition to learning new strategies.

8 VOLUNTEER SCHOOL SERVICE PROGRAM

40 HOUR REQUIREMENT

Southeast Christian School requires families to contribute 40 hours of school service each year as agreed to in the Volunteer Service/Fee Agreement signed and submitted with their enrollment application. Southeast Christian School greatly depends upon parent and community volunteers to enhance and facilitate each child's education. Some volunteer opportunities are a one-time commitment and others are ongoing. (Half day Transitional Kindergarten and Kindergarten parents are required to do only 20 hours of volunteer service.)

Many projects can be done at home to accommodate busy parents' work schedules. The main goal of the volunteer school service program at school is for us to get to know you better. We love having our parents here and your students will love seeing you helping their school.

Make sure that the person you are coming in to help knows that you are coming so that they will have planned things for you to do. Volunteers are to refrain from bringing their other children into the classroom so as to protect the integrity of the learning environment.

WHAT IF I CAN'T VOLUNTEER?

Southeast Christian School understands that life has its challenges. At the same time, by looking at the opportunities available, we are confident that some contribution can be made by all families. Still, exemptions are possible. Please see the school office with questions or contact the Executive Director.

VOLUNTEER CODE OF ETHICS

The help and assistance that volunteers provide is very much appreciated and ultimately benefits our children. We thank you very much for the wonderful work that you do with our students and for the tasks that you perform which make our jobs in the educational professions that much easier. We love to have you!

A volunteer:

- Agrees to abide by and support the Southeast Christian School statement of Faith.
- Agrees to and follows all confidentiality and FERPA regulations. Click here for a <u>link to FERPA law.</u>
- Helps to create a positive climate and supports the faculty, administration, and staff by following school -wide and classroom regulations.
- Is in the school to increase student confidence and strive to bolster each student's self-esteem.
- Deals impartially and fairly with students regardless of differences in background and nationality, intelligence, physical ability, or emotional maturity.
- Remembers that direct communication with parents about a child's schoolwork is the responsibility of the school's professional staff, and thus, refers parents to the appropriate teacher.
- Consults with the supervising teacher at appointed times so as not to interrupt the instructor's schedule.
 Follows school procedures for setting up a conference with own child's teacher and discuss own concerns at an appropriate and convenient time, pre-arranged with the teacher.
- Agrees to abide by the —two adult rule and will never be alone with a child without another adult or
 witness. Groups of students with an adult constitute witness and as such are acceptable for individual
 adult interaction.

As a part-time volunteer, one's view of classroom events is a partial one, and as such, perceptions may be incomplete. If a volunteer has concerns about any aspect of classroom events, they should start by talking directly and privately to the teacher. If concerns persist, contacting the administrator is then appropriate.

As professionals, we respect the privacy and confidential nature of significant information regarding our students' written records, behavioral matters, and special circumstances; these are considered internal, private, and confidential. At times, when we open our classrooms and offices to volunteers, such information may become known, and we have to rely on the integrity and good judgment of our volunteers to keep such knowledge private. Please do your part:

- When asked in good faith about a student's problems or progress, you must refer all such questions to authorized school personnel. You may not share information about a student even with members of your own family or the student's family.
- You may not share information about a student even with others who are generally interested and care
 for the student such as a pastor, nurse, scout leader, youth leader, etc. A grave medical emergency
 would be the only exception.
- Each student with whom you work has the right to expect that nothing that happens to or about him or
 her will be repeated to anyone other than authorized school employees. Even school employees should
 only be given information that is relevant to the student's educational and spiritual growth, safety, or
 well-being.

Thank you for respecting our code of ethics, and thank you for being a volunteer!

9 OTHER POLICIES

Emergency Response Guide

As part of staff development time at the beginning of the school year, teachers are trained in the Southeast Christian School Emergency Response Guide (ERG). Staff members will also receive an ERG booklet that is to be reviewed monthly and to be kept in an easily accessible location.

Our goal is to conduct a Safety drill once a month for fire evacuation, a lockdown drill each quarter, a shelter in place (tornado drill) each quarter, and annually an evacuation drill. It is recommended that the different types of drills be practiced in each classroom with students throughout the school year. Classroom teachers must include emergency response items in their sub folders.

In the event of an emergency on Southeast's campus, the recommendations in the ERG can be of assistance.

Concealed Carry Policy effective January 17, 2017

Southeast Christian School believes in and supports the 2nd Amendment and the right to carry weapons. At the same time, Southeast Christian School desires to protect the entire Southeast Christian School family to include students, staff, and parents. Trying to balance these two desires, we ask that you not carry weapons (concealed or open) in the school or to/on school required events/trips. This includes any vehicle or when you are in the presence of Southeast Christian School children other than your own and Southeast Christian School personnel. The exceptions to this policy apply to law enforcement personnel, the Security Team, and a small number of staff who will be permitted to carry based upon interviews with the Southeast Christian School Executive Director and Southeast Christian School/SECC Security Staff. In those rare exceptions, staff will be required to participate in frequent meetings for instruction/oversight. Requests for exception to this policy must go through the Executive Director and Security.

Non-Discriminatory Policy

Southeast Christian School admits students of any race, color, national and ethnic origin to all the rights, privileges, programs and activities generally accorded or made available to students at the school. It does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national and ethnic origin in administration of its educational policies, admissions policies, athletic and other school administered programs, nor in the hiring of faculty or administrative staff.

Asbestos Notification

Southeast is required by the state of Colorado to notify parents and employees of the availability of an Asbestos Management Plan (AMP). This plan is available for inspection in the church office during regular office hours.

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA):

School law enforcement unit officials who are employed by the school should be designated in its FERPA notification as school officials with a legitimate educational interest. As such, they may be given access to personally identifiable information from the student's educational records. The school's law enforcement unit officials must protect the privacy of educational records it receives and may disclose them only in compliance

with FERPA. For that reason, it is advisable that law enforcement unit records be maintained separately from educational records.

Under FERPA, investigative reports and other records created and maintained by these law enforcement units are not considered education records subject to FERPA. Accordingly, schools may disclose any information from law enforcement unit records to anyone, including outside law enforcement authorities, without parental consent [34 CFR 99.8]

The Safety and Security Department of Southeast Christian Church and School will act as —law enforcement unit officials for Southeast Christian School.

10 APPENDICES

Appendix A - SCS Uniform Pictorial Guide



Shorts start

Pants start \$24.95

\$22.95

Short start\$23.95

Pants start \$26.95

Navy

Solid Half \$32.95

Solid Reg \$30.95

Solid Reg \$30.95Solid Half \$32.95

Solid Half \$36.95

Plaid Reg \$42.95

Plaid Half \$44.95

Appendix B - Technology Use Agreement

Student Acceptable Use Agreement (SAUA), and Google Suite for Education User and Consent Agreements

Southeast Christian School Student Acceptable Use Agreement (SAUA) Consent Form

For Information Technology (IT) and Networked Resources 2021-2022 school year

General Information: In support of our educational mission, Southeast Christian School may provide IT, computers of various kinds, networks, Internet access, and electronic mail accounts, and various peripherals (printers, headsets, mice, etc.), to our students and staff to promote educational excellence, student achievement, and biblical stewardship. It is our goal to successfully equip and encourage students in 21st century learning skills so that they may efficiently use technology in ways that honor God and serve others. Southeast Christian School teachers and staff will make every effort to ensure that students use IT resources responsibly. Specific resources may include access to/use of Accelerated Reader, Typing Pal, Common Sense Media, G Suite accounts and resources, Microsoft, FACTS-SIS, and many other programs and resources. Parents and the students themselves are ultimately responsible for behavior and use of IT resources especially outside school hours. Periodically, the school will require that consent forms be updated and signed by parents and students to verify continued use of Southeast Christian School IT. This form must be signed by a parent (and each student grade 4 and above) to allow continued access to Southeast Christian School IT resources.

These basic guidelines are provided so that you are aware of the responsibilities you are about to assume. If a user violates any of these provisions, his/her account may be suspended or terminated and future access may be denied. Possible disciplinary action may also result. If possible criminal activity is discovered, the proper authorities will be notified. Disciplinary action for students will be in accordance with existing discipline policies and may include suspension and/or expulsion. The signature(s) at the end of this document indicate(s) the party /parties who signed this agreement has/have read the terms and conditions carefully, understand(s) their significance, and agrees to fully comply with them. CIPA, COPPA, and FERPA compliance is discussed in the Southeast Christian School G Suite UA.

User Guidelines

- 1. Use of all technology resources at Southeast Christian School must be in support of the school educational objectives. Transmission of any material in violation of any federal or state law or regulation is prohibited. Use for commercial activities is prohibited unless prior written consent from the Southeast Christian School has been granted. In addition to these guidelines, guidelines in the school handbook, from teachers, and procedures for specific devices may apply to users relating to technology resources.
- 2. Southeast Christian School does not represent or warrant that the functions of the system will meet any specific requirements or that it will be error free or uninterrupted; nor shall it be liable for any direct or indirect, incidental, or consequential damages (including lost data and information) sustained or incurred in connection with the use, operation or inability to use the system.
- 3. The user acknowledges that not all student access to the Internet can or will be supervised, however any action by a user that is determined by Southeast Christian School to constitute an inappropriate use of Southeast Christian School resources or to improperly restrict or inhibit other members from using Southeast Christian School resources is strictly prohibited and may result in termination of privileges and/or disciplinary action. The user specifically agrees not to access, submit, publish, display or print using Southeast Christian School resources any defamatory, inaccurate, abusive, obscene, profane, sexually oriented, threatening, ethnically offensive or illegal material. The user further agrees to use Southeast Christian School resources in

accordance with all copyright laws. Copying, saving or redistributing copyrighted material is not allowed and users should assume material is copyrighted unless explicitly notified otherwise.

4. Southeast Christian School attempts to provide filtered Internet access through a third party vendor. However Southeast Christian School does not and cannot absolutely control Internet content or access thereto. Some Internet content may be deemed offensive. The school shall not be responsible for any material or information accessed on the Internet by any user and shall not be responsible for the impact or effect of the information on the user. Use of any information obtained via Southeast Christian School resources is at the user's own risk.

Southeast Christian School specifically denies any responsibility for the accuracy or quality of information obtained through Southeast Christian School resources, and it exercises limited control over the content of the information residing on or passing through the system. Products or services may not be purchased through Southeast Christian School resources. Files stored on school servers, electronic mail, and the uses of Southeast Christian School resources are not private, and may be subject to inspection and/or monitoring. The school may publish student work and photos (see details under Southeast Christian School G Suite UA).

- 5. Miscellaneous prohibited activity includes but is not limited to:
 - Using any camera for inappropriate pictures or movies or for capturing someone without their knowledge.
 - Intentionally visiting websites with inappropriate content or impersonating someone else online
 - Accessing another student's account, sending email from another account, or altering another student's work.
 - Using another student's assigned or owned device or computer without teacher permission.
- 6. Vandalism shall result in cancellation of privileges. Vandalism includes any malicious attempt to harm, destroy alter data associated with Southeast Christian School resources, or **to alter system settings**. Attempts to access restricted data may result in termination of privileges and/or disciplinary action. Southeast Christian School IT administrators and authorities reserve the right to monitor any and all activity on the system. Users are expected to properly handle, store, and protect all IT resources including using clean hands and isolating use from **all** foods and liquids.

If any electronic device is being used by a student on school property (personal or school owned) and it is suspected that the use is either in conflict with the school user agreements for technology or illegal, the device may be confiscated immediately, put in airplane mode, and turned over to school authorities and/or law enforcement.

Google Suite for Education

At Southeast Christian School, we use G Suite for Education, and we are seeking your permission to provide and manage a G Suite for Education account for your child. G Suite for Education is a set of education productivity tools from Google, including Gmail, Calendar, Docs, Classroom, and more used by tens of millions of students and teachers around the world. At Southeast Christian School, students will use their G Suite accounts to complete assignments, communicate with their teachers, sign into their Chromebooks, and learn 21st century digital citizenship skills.

The notice below provides answers to common questions about what Google can and can't do with your child's personal information, including:

What personal information does Google collect?

How does Google use this information?

Will Google disclose my child's personal information?

Does Google use student personal information for users in K-12 schools to target advertising?

Can my child share information with others using the G Suite for Education account?

G Suite for Education Notice to Parents and Guardians

This notice describes the personal information we provide to Google for these accounts and how Google collects, uses, and discloses personal information from students in connection with these accounts. Using their G Suite for Education accounts, students may access and use the following "Core Services" offered by Google (described at https://gsuite.google.com/terms/user_features.html):

Gmail

Google+

Calendar

Chrome Sync

Classroom

Cloud Search

Contacts

Docs, Sheets, Slides, Forms

Drive

Groups

Hangouts, Hangouts Chat, Hangouts Meet, Google Talk

Jamboard

Keep

Sites

Vault

In addition, we also allow students to access certain other Google services with their G Suite for Education accounts. Specifically, your child may have access to the following "Additional Services":

YouTube

Blogger

Google Maps.

Google provides information about the information it collects, as well as how it uses and discloses the information it collects from G Suite for Education accounts in its G Suite for Education Privacy Notice. You can read that notice online at https://gsuite.google.com/terms/education_privacy.html You should review this information in its entirety, but below are answers to some common questions:

What personal information does Google collect?

When creating a student account, Southeast Christian School may provide Google with certain personal information about the student, including, for example, a name, email address, and password. Google may also collect personal information directly from students, such as telephone number for account recovery or a profile photo added to the G Suite for Education account.

When a student uses Google services, Google also collects information based on the use of those services. This includes:

device information, such as the hardware model, operating system version, unique device identifiers, and mobile network information including phone number;

log information, including details of how a user used Google services, device event information, and the user's Internet protocol (IP) address;

location information, as determined by various technologies including IP address, GPS, and other sensors;

unique application numbers, such as application version number; and cookies or similar technologies which are used to collect and store information about a browser or device, such as preferred language and other settings.

How does Google use this information?

In G Suite for Education Core Services, Google uses student personal information to provide, maintain, and protect the services. Google does not serve ads in the Core Services or use personal information collected in the Core Services for advertising purposes.

In Google Additional Services, Google uses the information collected from all Additional Services to provide, maintain, protect and improve them, to develop new ones, and to protect Google and its users. Google may also use this information to offer tailored content, such as more relevant search results. Google may combine personal information from one service with information, including personal information, from other Google services.

Does Google use student personal information for users in K-12 schools to target advertising?

No. For G Suite for Education users in primary and secondary (K-12) schools, Google does not use any user personal information (or any information associated with a G Suite for Education Account) to target ads, whether in Core Services or in other Additional Services accessed while using a G Suite for Education account.

Can my child share information with others using the G Suite for Education account?

We may allow students to access Google services such as Google Docs and Sites, which include features where users can share information with others or publicly. When users share information publicly, it may be indexable by search engines, including Google.

Will Google disclose my child's personal information?

Google will not share personal information with companies, organizations and individuals outside of Google unless one of the following circumstances applies:

With parental or guardian consent. Google will share personal information with companies, organizations or individuals outside of Google when it has parents' consent (for users below the age of consent), which may be obtained through G Suite for Education schools.

With Southeast Christian School. G Suite for Education accounts, because they are school-managed accounts, give administrators access to information stored in them.

For external processing. Google may provide personal information to affiliates or other trusted businesses or persons to process it for Google, based on Google's instructions and in compliance with the G Suite for Education privacy notice and any other appropriate confidentiality and security measures.

For legal reasons. Google will share personal information with companies, organizations or individuals outside of Google if it has a good-faith belief that access, use, preservation or disclosure of the information is reasonably necessary to:

meet any applicable law, regulation, legal process or enforceable governmental request. enforce applicable Terms of Service, including investigation of potential violations. detect, prevent, or otherwise address fraud, security or technical issues.

protect against harm to the rights, property or safety of Google, Google users or the public as required or permitted by law.

Google also shares non-personal information -- such as trends about the use of its services -- publicly and with its partners.

What choices do I have as a parent or guardian?

First, you can consent to the collection and use of your child's information by Google. If you don't provide your consent, we will not create a G Suite for Education account for your child, and Google will not collect or use your child's information as described in this notice.

If you consent to your child's use of G Suite for Education, you can access or request deletion of your child's G Suite for Education account by contacting Southeast Christian School - IT. If you wish to stop any further collection or use of your child's information, you can request that we use the service controls available to limit your child's access to features or services, or delete your child's account entirely. You and your child can also visit https://myaccount.google.com while signed in to the G Suite for Education account to view and manage the personal information and settings of the account.

What if I have more questions or would like to read further?

If you have questions about our use of Google's G Suite for Education accounts or the choices available to you, please contact Southeast Christian School - IT. If you want to learn more about how Google collects, uses, and discloses personal information to provide services to us, please review the <u>G Suite for Education Privacy Center</u> (at https://www.google.com/edu/trust/), the <u>G Suite for Education Privacy Notice</u> (at https://gsuite.google.com/terms/education_privacy.html), and the <u>Google Privacy Policy</u> (at https://www.google.com/intl/en/policies/privacy/).

The Core G Suite for Education services are provided to us under <u>Google's Apps for Education agreement</u> (at https://www.google.com/apps/intl/en/terms/education_terms.html)

Acceptable Use (Privacy and Safety) GSFE is primarily for educational use. Students may use GSFE for personal use subject to the restrictions below and additional school rules and policies that may apply. **Privacy** – The Southeast Christian School Google Ed administrator will have access to student accounts, including email for monitoring purposes. If a situation warrants, access may also be granted to other school staff and the parents of that student. Students should have no expectation of privacy on the GSFE system.

Limited personal use - Students may use GSFE tools for personal projects but may not use them for:

- o Unlawful activities and/or threatening another person
- o Commercial purposes (running a business or trying to make money)
- o Personal financial gain (running a web site to sell things)
- o Inappropriate sexual or other offensive content
- o Misrepresentation of Southeast Christian School, staff or students. Apps, sites, email, and groups are not public forums. They are extensions of classroom spaces where student free speech rights may be limited.

Safety

- o Students may not post personal contact information about themselves <u>or other people</u>. That includes last names, addresses and phone numbers.
- o Students agree not to meet with someone met online without their parent's approval and participation.
- o Students will tell their teacher or other responsible school employee any message they receive that is inappropriate or makes them feel uncomfortable.
- o Students are responsible for the use of their individual account and should take all reasonable precautions to prevent others from using their account. A user should never provide his/her password to another person.

Access Restriction - Due Process

Access to Google Suite for Education, as with use of any school provided technology resource, or the ability to use a personal device (i.e. iPad, laptop, phone) at school, is considered a privilege accorded at the discretion of the school. The school maintains the right to immediately withdraw the access and use of GSFE when there is reason to believe that violations of law or school policies have occurred. In such cases, the alleged violation will be referred to school authorities for further investigation and account restoration, suspension, or termination. As a party of the Agreement with Google, Southeast Christian School also reserves the right to immediately suspend any user account suspected of inappropriate use. Pending review, a user account may be terminated as part of such action.

Consumer Safety (Advice for Students and Parents)

Don't get scammed. Crooks are good at fooling people. They create fake emails and web pages that look real in a practice called phishing. Don't trust links or web pages sent by email. Instead, open a new browser window and type in the address yourself.

Don't get spammed. Spam is unwanted advertising sent by email. Never reply to spam and never do business with a company that sends spam. Use the "report spam" button to get rid of spam.

Digital Citizenship (Advice for All)

Treat others well. It hurts to get a mean email just like it hurts when someone is mean in the school hallway. When using email or making a post on a forum or web page, be kind and follow the principles in Mark 12:31. "The second is this: 'Love your neighbor as yourself.' There is no commandment greater than these." Many people are able to see what you write so think before you type. Be careful with what you say about others and yourself.

Respect the rights of copyright owners. Copyright infringement occurs when an individual reproduces a work without permission that is protected by a copyright. If a work contains language that specifies acceptable use of that work, the user should follow the expressed requirements. If the user is unsure whether or not they can use a work, they should request permission from the copyright owner.

Students have First Amendment rights to free speech. Your rights can be limited in school, though. If you post something via email or on a school web page that disturbs the learning environment in your school, your right of speech may be limited. School websites, email, and groups are for educational use and are not considered public forums for debating ideas. This means that a school has the right to limit student speech that disturbs the learning process in these areas.

These are the laws and policies that help to protect our students online: Child Internet Protection Act (CIPA)

The school is required by CIPA to have technology measures and policies in place that protect students from harmful materials including those that are obscene and pornographic. This means that student email is filtered. Mail containing harmful content from inappropriate sites will be blocked. -- CIPA - http://fcc.gov/cgb/consumerfacts/cipa.html Children's Online Privacy Protection Act (COPPA) COPPA applies to commercial companies and limits their ability to collect personal information from children under 13. By default, Google advertising is turned off for GSFE users. No personal student information is collected for commercial purposes. This permission form allows the school to act as an agent for parents in the collection of information within the school context. The school's use of student information is solely for education purposes. -- COPPA - http://www.ftc.gov/privacy/coppafaqs.shtm Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) FERPA protects the privacy of student education records and gives parents rights to review student records. Under FERPA, schools may disclose directory information (name, phone, address, grade level, etc...) but parents may request that the school not disclose this information.

The school may publish student work and photos for public viewing with restricted personal information. Parents may request that photos, names and general information about their children not be published. Parents have the right at any time to investigate the contents of their child's email and GSFE files.

FERPA - http://www2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/ferpa. Google Ed may collect some personal information from students based upon student activity for the use and benefit of the school, and for no other commercial purpose.

Appendix C - 1 to 1 Chromebook Policy (Grades 4th - 8th)

Whereas, it is our goal to successfully equip and encourage students in 21st century learning skills so that they may efficiently and responsibly use technology in ways that honor God and serve others. And, whereas there is a high demand for internet equipped devices to be used for research and data processing in the 21st century classroom environment; the following proposal/ guidelines are suggested to meet the needs and manage the behavior of students' electronic device usage in our 1 to 1 Chromebook program.

Expectations:

- Students will be assigned a Chromebook at the start of the school year. The student accepts responsibility for proper care and use of the device during the school day. The student will sign an agreement stating that they understand and accept this responsibility. The agreement can be found here.
- All devices will be stored in the designated Chromebook cart and must be returned to the cart by the end of each school day. Devices should be plugged in and charging when not in use.
- Students with 1:1 devices will only use the device that is assigned to them and not use or borrow another student's device. In the event that the assigned Chromebook is missing, the student will report it to the school's Educational Technologist.
- Devices are not to be used for personal e-mail, social media, texting, etc., but only for school designated purposes.

Appendix D - Volunteer Confidentiality Agreement

Volunteer Confidentiality & Non-Disclosure Agreement

This is an Agreement between	("You") and Southeast Christian School ("School").	The
Agreement should be signed and filed with th	ne School Office prior to your first day of volunteering.	

As a volunteer with the School, You will often have access to and gain knowledge of confidential and proprietary information belonging to the School and regarding other people's children. The term "Confidential Information" is defined below, but in general, it refers to any information related to the School including student information which is not known to the general public.

As an express condition precedent to your volunteering, You are required to agree to comply with the terms of this Agreement.

Therefore, intending to be legally bound, You agree to the following:

- 1. **Term of Agreement**. This Agreement is effective on the Effective Date, and shall remain in effect throughout the current school year. Certain provisions of this Agreement will continue beyond your term of volunteering.
- 2. **Confidential Information Defined**. As used in this Agreement, "Confidential Information" means confidential and/or proprietary information which is disclosed to You or which You otherwise learn of during the course of or as the direct or indirect result of your volunteering with the School. Confidential Information is information not generally known to the public or to others who could obtain economic value from their disclosure or use of the Information. All information related to the School which You gain during the time of your volunteering should be deemed confidential, unless clearly identified to be non-confidential. Any and all student performance information including discipline, grades, growth or instruction needs are confidential. Per FERPA law.
- A. Confidential Information includes all proprietary technical, financial, parent/student, business or other information owned by or licensed to the School or any of its clients, customers, or vendors, including by way of illustration, but not limitation, parent/student lists, student data, student grades, student discipline, computerized data, maps, written material, drawings, photographs, organization charts, advertising materials, financial records and reports of the School or any enterprise affiliated with the School, and performance information.
- B. Confidential Information includes all information that should reasonably be understood by You because of legends or other markings, the circumstances of disclosure, or the nature of the information itself, to be Confidential Information, regardless of whether such information is marked "Confidential." All information gained during the course of your volunteering should be presumed confidential unless the information is clearly identified otherwise or the circumstances of disclosure demonstrate it not to be confidential.
- C. Confidential Information includes, without limitation, Information which is made, written, discussed, developed, secured, obtained or learned (a) solely or jointly with others, (b) during the usual hours of the school day or otherwise, (c) at the request and upon the suggestion of the School or otherwise, (d) with the School's materials, tools, instruments, or (e) on the School's premises or otherwise.
- 3. **Return of Confidential Information.** You agree to promptly return all Confidential Information to the School upon the School's request.

- 4. **Compliance with Rules.** You agree to comply with all reasonable rules established from time to time by the School for the protection of Confidential Information.
- 5. **Disclosure to the Company of Confidential Information.** You agree to promptly and fully disclose to the School any Confidential Information that You design, create, or develop, including, without limitation, any Information which is patentable or subject to copyright protection or which may be protected as a trade secret.
- 6. **Disclosure to the Government**. You are permitted by federal law to disclose Confidential Information if You do so in complete confidence, either directly or indirectly, to a federal, state, or local government official or to an attorney. Such disclosure is permitted, however, solely (i) for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of applicable law; or (ii) in the context of a complaint or other document filed under seal in a lawsuit or other proceeding. This includes reports to Child Protective Services.

Appendix E - Discipline Infractions by Level

Description of Level '0' Offenses

Level '0' indicates that a student has been warned and documentation has been filed in FACTS-SIS. Level '0's are generally used to indicate warnings but consecutive level '0' warnings may result in detention or other consequences.

Description of Level '1' Offenses

Students guilty of Level '1' offenses on Southeast Christian School property, within 1000 feet of Southeast Christian School property, or while attending a school sponsored activity on or off Southeast Christian School property are subject to after school detention assignment(s). Multiple Level '1' offenses could lead to assignment to In School Suspension (ISS). Continued Level '1' offenses could also lead to Out of School Suspension (OSS), probation, and ultimately, expulsion from Southeast Christian School.

The Level '1' Offenses are:

- Blasphemy Any article of clothing, jewelry, art, graffiti, speech, or actions employed for the purpose of defaming the LORD.
- Class Disruption Behavior that inhibits the teacher's ability to conduct a lesson.
- Computer Gaming/Personal Use Using technology during class for the purpose of playing games or personal use inconsistent with instructional objectives or staff directions for school related assignments or projects.
- Disrespect Not showing proper respect to an administrator, teacher, or staff member through words or actions.
- Uniform Violations
- Electronic Devices Use or visibility of electronic devices such as MP3 players, radios, tape players, CD players, televisions, video games, and cell phones during school hours. Refusal to comply with staff confiscation requests will result in "insubordination" consequences (Class C).
- Failure to complete assignments
- Gambling Playing cards or dice for money, tossing coins, or wagering on any activity is prohibited on school property.
- Horseplay Rowdy, rough, and disruptive playing .
- Leaving School Grounds Without Permission Leaving school grounds without first receiving parental or administrative permission and signing out at the attendance office. Violation of this policy may also result in additional school consequences.
- Littering Polluting the school building or grounds purposefully or neglectfully.
- Lying Intentionally veiling the truth verbally or by omission for selfish purposes.
- Profanity Language, writing, and/or actions considered indecent, profane and/or obscene by the recipient or by staff member.
- Public Display of Affection Physical demonstration of affection while in view of others (hugging, kissing, etc.).
- Truancy Being out of one's designated location during class time without permission.

Description of Level '2' Offenses

Students guilty of Level '2' offenses on Southeast Christian School property, within 1000 feet of Southeast Christian School property, or while attending a school sponsored activity on or off Southeast Christian School property are subject to immediate placement in In School Suspension (ISS) for up to five days. Succeeding Level '2' offense may lead to Out of School Suspension (OSS) or expulsion from Southeast Christian School.

The Level '2' Offenses are:

- Cheating/Plagiarism An attempt to improve one's performance or the performance of another through deceit or fraud including using material from another source without appropriate attribution. Cheating involves giving information as well as receiving it. Students found guilty of cheating or plagiarism will be given a grade of 'zero' on the assignment in addition to any other disciplinary consequences.
- Computer Damage/Hacking Damaging and/or destroying and/or altering and/or viewing the hardware, software, or applications of another student by any method including, but not limited to, the use of computer software viruses or other electronic means.
- Defamation- purposeful gossip, hateful, mean or slanderous communication in verbal or written form including in social media
- Explosive Devices/Firecrackers Possession—Bringing explosive devices, firecrackers, or smoke bombs onto school property.
- False Testimony Lying for the purpose of avoiding consequences for self or for others or lying for the purpose of getting self, others, or staff into trouble.
- Inappropriate Contraband Possession of dangerous objects that could cause physical harm including (but not limited to) knives with blades less than 3 inches, clubs, and/or sticks.
- Inappropriate Use of Instructional Materials Using instructional materials for purposes other than for educational use. This policy includes but is not limited to computers and computer software.
- Insubordination Refusing to obey a request or instruction by a staff member.
- Intimidation/Threat/ Bullying Frightening or tormenting another person physically, verbally, or in written form (including social media).
- Profanity- Language, writing, and/or actions considered indecent, profane, and/or obscene
- Substantial Disruption Planning and/or organizing and/or instigating and/or participating in activity that causes a substantial disruption (significant detriment to the normal flow of the school day) to the educational purpose and program of Southeast Christian School.
- Theft and/or Accomplice to Theft Directly stealing, assisting in, encouraging and/or contributing to the possession of items without the owner's consent.
- Tobacco Use/Possession/Distribution Possession, use or distribution of tobacco products (including smokeless tobacco) in the school, on school property, off school property at a school related event, or within 1000 feet of Southeast Christian School property.
- Trespassing Any unauthorized appearance on campus after hours while not under the direct supervision of a teacher, extracoach, or sponsor or not for the purpose of attending a school sponsored activity. Additionally, students who are suspended or expelled are prohibited from coming on campus until they have been readmitted to Southeast Christian School. Trespassing in this manner may result in notification of the proper authorities.
- Truancy Being out of one's designated location during class time without permission.
- Verbal Abuse Verbal threats and taunts. Use of offensive language directed at staff members or other students. This may include racial, ethnic, or sexual epithets or references used to degrade another person.

Description of Level '3' Offenses

Students guilty of Level '3' offenses on Southeast Christian School property, within 1000 feet of Southeast Christian School property, or while attending a school sponsored activity on or off Southeast Christian School property are subject to immediate Out of School Suspension (OSS), subsequent In School Suspension (ISS), and placement on disciplinary probation. A second Level '3' offense can lead to expulsion from Southeast Christian School.

The Level '3' Offenses are:

- Drug Paraphernalia Possession Possession of any item that would be used in the context of the intake of drugs or other illegally used dangerous substances. This policy also includes any article of clothing, jewelry, art, or graffiti that advertises or glamorizes the use of drugs.
- Fighting When two or more participants engage in a physical confrontation. In a fight, all participants will be disciplined.
- Pornography Possession Possessing or viewing drawings, pictures, images, including Internet websites that are pornographic in nature. Violation of this policy may require proof of attendance to sexual addiction counseling program in addition to the school consequences.
- Profanity Toward Staff Member or Volunteer– Language, writing, and/or actions considered indecent, profane, and/or obscene directed at a Southeast Christian School employee or volunteer.
- Vandalism Destruction or defacement of any school property, facilities, and equipment. This includes any activity that requires extra cleaning attention beyond normal operation (i.e. pranks).

Description of Level '4'

Offenses Students guilty of Level '4' offenses on Southeast Christian School property, within 1000 feet of Southeast Christian School property, or while attending a school sponsored activity on or off Southeast Christian School property are subject to immediate out of school suspension and recommendation for expulsion for a prescribed amount of time or indefinitely from Southeast Christian School as well as notification of the proper authorities. In addition, students who engage in any conduct punishable as a felony, are convicted of, or receive deferred adjudication for conduct defined in the Colorado Penal Code as a Class B misdemeanor (or more serious offense), or students who cause the Executive Director or designee to have reasonable belief that the student has engaged in conduct defined as a felony whether on or off Southeast Christian School property (not related to a school sponsored activity) will also be subject to immediate suspension and recommended for expulsion.

The Level '4' Offenses are:

- Alcohol Use/Possession/Distribution (1st Offense) Possession, use or distribution of alcohol in the school, on school property, off school property at a school related event, or within 1000 feet of Southeast Christian School property.
- Altering Records/Computer Tampering/Computer Damage Tampering with, gaining access to, changing, or altering records or documents by any method, including, but not limited to, computer access or other electronic means or damaging and/or destroying and/or altering the hardware or software of Southeast Christian School by any method including, but not limited to, the use of computer software viruses or other electronic means.
- Arson Setting or helping to set any fire on school grounds.
- Battery/Assault on a Staff Member Any violent or physical attack on a staff member on school grounds, in conjunction with a school related activity, or as an act of retaliation off campus.
- Being under the influence of drugs or alcohol while on campus Any student who is under the influence of any illegal drug or alcohol while on Southeast Christian School property for any reason. (Property is to include any Southeast Christian School sanctioned function)
- Bomb/Facsimile Possession or Bomb Threat Possession of a bomb or a bomb like device, bomb threat or false information concerning the placement of explosives or destructive substances.
- Dangerous Weapons Bringing any weapon or potentially dangerous item is prohibited on school property.
- Detonation of Explosive Devices/Firecrackers Igniting explosive devices, firecrackers, or smoke bombs while on school property.
- Distribution of Intoxicants Selling or giving away drugs, placebos, or any other dangerous substance including prescription medications.
- Extortion Attempt to obtain money or property through threat of physical harm (explicit or suggested).

- False Fire Alarm Pulling the fire alarm without legitimate cause.
- Physical Assault An unprovoked attack on a student on school grounds or in conjunction with a school activity.
- Possession and/or Use of Intoxicants Possession or use of drugs, placebos (lookalikes), or other dangerous and/or illegal substances in the school, on school property, off school property at a school related event, or within 1000 feet of Southeast Christian School property.
- Sexual Harassment Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, or other inappropriate verbal, written, or physical conduct of a sexual nature.
- Sexual Offenses Physical sexual attacks; inappropriate behavior of a sexual nature including indecent exposure and other sexual activity not identified as sexual harassment.
- Terroristic Threat A terroristic threat is a crime generally involving a threat to commit violence communicated with the intent to terrorize another, to cause evacuation of a building, or to cause serious public inconvenience, in reckless disregard of the risk of causing such terror or inconvenience. It may mean an offense against property or involving danger to another person that may include but is not limited to recklessly endangering another person, harassment, stalking, ethnic intimidation, and criminal mischief.

As this list is not exhaustive, Southeast Christian School reserves the right to discipline according to biblical standards and previous protocols. Any item not on this list will be handled at the discretion of the staff and administration of the school.

Appendix F - Southeast Christian School Homeschool Program

Mission

Building K-8 Homeschool family partnerships with the Southeast Christian School community to support the body of Christ through developing spiritual, educational, social, and athletic based relationships for all.

Homeschool Programs

There are two partnership tracks for K-8 homeschool families: Immersion or a 1 day enrichment program meeting weekly on Wednesdays, excluding school holidays. The Immersion Track allows families to select one or more core content subjects integrated with Southeast Christian School students. The Enrichment Track provides a half day or full day option to engage with peers in a variety of Christ-centered opportunities.

Homeschool Policy

All add on options are based on availability of open student positions per grade level (classroom is not at capacity) and course offerings per year.

The umbrella program will provide mandatory reporting to the home school district and the Colorado Department of Education.

Homeschool families participating in any of the above services:

- Must submit an application and all current assessment data.
- Must sign the Parent/Student Handbook, Statement of Faith, all other forms in the enrollment and application process, and successfully complete a background check.
- Will pay a semester enrollment fee to engage in program options through Southeast Christian School.
- Will commit for one semester.
- Must participate in literacy and/or math assessment prior to admission into a core classroom program
 option for appropriate placement.
- Must be in uniform for all school activities which includes solid colored pants and solid polo shirt.
- Must, as a parent, volunteer 5 hours per semester or pay volunteer fee.
- May participate in Middle School Service Learning Days.
- Must participate in school fundraisers by raising funds in order to attend PCO community events such as Father/Daughter Dance, Mother/Son Event, Family Community Nights, etc.
- Will file a notification of intent to homeschool with the details of the established home-based education program with the school district in which they reside.
- If a family chooses to participate in a school field trip, then they will pay the organizing teacher per the field trip communication given to all families.
- If a 4th/5th grade family chooses to participate in AmeriTowne, a parent would be required to attend a parent orientation at AmeriTowne. The students would be required to attend the AmeriTowne shoppe training for two days prior to the actual event.

Athletic Participation:

 Must be a member of the full day homeschool program; may not displace a full time student; must attend all practices; must pay all athletic fees; must be in good academic standing according to homeschool grade reports.

Homeschool Coordinator: Meghan Herrera (meghan.herrera@sechristianschool.org)

Executive Director: Michelle Davis (michelle.davis@sechristianschool.org)

Appendix G - Continual Enrollment Agreement

Southeast Christian School

Continual Enrollment Agreement

Please carefully review this Continual Enrollment Agreement, as your electronic signature will confirm your commitment to having your child continually enrolled at Southeast Christian School. This Agreement applies to the 2021-22 academic year and shall automatically renew for each successive academic year until your child has graduated from Southeast Christian School. This Agreement will remain in force unless it is terminated by Southeast Christian School, which may occur at any time and for any reason, or until written notice from the undersigned. If you choose to terminate this Agreement, your written notice must be received on or before February 1 of the current academic year to avoid all financial penalties. If you withdraw your child for any reason after the February 1 deadline, you, the undersigned, agree to pay the full tuition for the 2021-22 school year.

- I recognize that Southeast Christian School, may not be open on all dates outlined in its calendar for reasons including, but not limited to, weather and/or the inability to use facilities. There will be no deduction in tuition for early withdrawals, snow days, breaks, holidays, illnesses, or absences.
- 2. My interaction with school personnel will be conducted at all times in a manner pleasing to Christ. Degrading remarks, cursing, name-calling, threats, or intimidation will not be tolerated, and may result in the School disenrolling the student and terminating this Agt, which it may do in its sole discretion at any time and for any reason.
- 3. I agree to pay all tuition and fees for my child in accordance with the Tuition & Fees Schedule. I realize the entire school year's tuition must be paid or completed per my FACTS Agreement by June 30th of the school year.
- 4. I understand I must be in "good standing" with the School for my child to remain enrolled. "Good standing" means my financial account is current and unresolved matters are being addressed.
- 5. I agree to invest 40 hours of volunteer service at the School. I understand that I have a choice to opt out of this service and pay a volunteer service fee of \$400.00. Partial completion will result in a prorated fee at the discretion of the administration. Donations to the School are not allowed to offset the volunteer service fee.
- 6. I have read and agree to abide by and uphold the TK-8 Parent-Student Handbook.
- 7. WITHDRAWAL/REFUND POLICY:
 - Any withdrawal occurring after February 1 DOES NOT relieve the enrolling parent or legal guardian (undersigned) of the responsibility of making all tuition payments for the entire school year.
 - 2. Should a student be expelled from the School, the enrolling parent or guardian (undersigned) shall remain responsible for payment of tuition and fees for the entire school year.
 - 3. Registration and all other school fees are non-refundable.

8. PAST DUE ACCOUNTS/LATE AND INSUFFICIENT FEES:

 Tuition payment is due and payable as outlined in the FACTS Management Agreement. Refer to your FACTS Management Agreement for all fees assessed by FACTS for returned transactions.

- 2. Any returned check written to Southeast Christian School for a second deposit or for insufficient funds will be subject to a return fee of \$40.00 by the School.
- 3. Delinquent accounts that are more than two months in arrears will be subject to a \$50.00 late fee and may impact a student's ability to remain in school.
- 4. Families who are experiencing financial difficulties should contact the accounting office or Executive Director proactively to make arrangements.

My signature below confirms that I have read this Agreement and accept its terms and conditions. I further attest that I am the responsible party and have full authority as parent or legal guardian of this student to enter this Agreement.

Appendix H - Waiver and Indemnity

In the acceptance of my child as a student at SCS, and having satisfied myself that supervision and attention to safety are prudent and reasonable, I agree to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless SCS and its agents, employees, and representatives against any and all actions, claims, costs, expenses, and damages of any kind (including legal fees), made by me, my spouse, or the legal guardian of the child on behalf of the child arising out of any school activities, including transportation to and from those activities. I understand that my child may incur personal injury or bodily harm while participating in school sponsored activities.

Activities Release: I hereby permit SCS and/or its agents to take my child to functions, lunches, sports outings, and other field trips beyond the church grounds. I understand I will be given prior notification of such field trips, and I have the right to accept or deny the opportunity of each individual field trip. In your transport of my child to and from these activities I release you from any and all liability in the event my child is injured during an accident associated with SCS or its agents.

I hereby permit SCS to allow my child to view television and videos, within reasonable limits, as deemed beneficial by SCS. Viewing will be done in accordance with the curriculum, with a specific learning purpose and/or as recreation. I understand videos shown to my child will primarily be rated "G."

I hereby understand that, when my child is engaged in outdoor activities (e.g. field trips, camps, etc.), SCS will encourage my child to bring and apply his/her own sunscreen and take appropriate precautions for sun exposure.

Medical Release: In case of illness or accident, I give SCS permission to provide any emergency care for my child deemed necessary, including, but without limitation, treatment by public or private facilities or personnel. It is understood that a conscientious effort will be made to locate me (or the emergency contact persons designated by me) before any action is taken. I accept and agree to pay any charges incurred by SCS for such care. Any provider of care can rely on this Waiver as conclusive authority to treat my child, as appropriate, and to bill me directly for the costs therein.

I hereby permit SCS to receive any information necessary from my child's doctor to provide proper school guidance for medical support and academic instruction. I further understand it may be necessary for SCS to communicate about my child's health (which, otherwise, will be kept confidential) directly to appropriate teaching staff and administration, in which case I permit SCS to use its discretion in communicating about my child's health to his/her teachers. I also agree to provide complete immunization records as required by the state.

School Photographs/Video Release: I give SCS permission to use photographs or video images of my child for the purpose of occasional promotion of the school in print, electronic media, or on the school website (www.sechristianschool.org). I understand students' last names will not be published without specific parental approval. This agreement constitutes permission to use photographs and video footage of my child in presentations about the school. All photographs and video footage shall remain the sole property of Southeast Christian School. I understand that no compensation will be made to me for such use. If you prefer your child's photograph not be used for these purposes, your signature confirms your intent to notify the Safety and Security Department of your decision.

I have read and understand this Waiver and Indemnity Agreement, and have willingly placed my signature below as evidence of my acceptance of all the conditions contained herein. I further attest that I have full authority as parent or legal guardian of the above child to enter this agreement.

Appendix I - Volunteer Agreement

This is an Agreement between Parent/Guardian ("You") and Southeast Christian School ("School"). The Agreement should be signed and filed with the School Office prior to your first day of volunteering.

As a volunteer with the School, You will often have access to and gain knowledge of confidential and proprietary information belonging to the School and regarding other people's children. The term "Confidential Information" is defined below, but in general, it refers to any information related to the School including student information which is not known to the general public.

As an express condition precedent to your volunteering, You are required to agree to comply with the terms of this Agreement.

Therefore, intending to be legally bound, You agree to the following:

- 1. **Term of Agreement.** This Agreement is effective on the Effective Date, and shall remain in effect throughout the current school year. Certain provisions of this Agreement will continue beyond your term of volunteering.
- 2. Confidential Information Defined. As used in this Agreement, "Confidential Information" means confidential and/or proprietary information which is disclosed to You or which You otherwise learn of during the course of or as the direct or indirect result of your volunteering with the School. Confidential Information is information not generally known to the public or to others who could obtain economic value from their disclosure or use of the Information. All information related to the School which You gain during the time of your volunteering should be deemed confidential, unless clearly identified to be non-confidential. Any and all student performance information including discipline, grades, growth or instruction needs are confidential. Per FERPA law.
 - A. Confidential Information includes all proprietary technical, financial, parent/student, business or other information owned by or licensed to the School or any of its clients, customers, or vendors, including by way of illustration, but not limitation, parent/student lists, student data, student grades, student discipline, computerized data, maps, written material, drawings, photographs, organization charts, advertising materials, financial records and reports of the School or any enterprise affiliated with the School, and performance information.
 - B. Confidential Information includes all information that should reasonably be understood by You because of legends or other markings, the circumstances of disclosure, or the nature of the information itself, to be Confidential Information, regardless of whether such information is marked "Confidential." All information gained during the course of your volunteering should be presumed confidential unless the information is clearly identified otherwise or the circumstances of disclosure demonstrate it not to be confidential.
 - C. Confidential Information includes, without limitation, Information which is made, written, discussed, developed, secured, obtained or learned (a) solely or jointly with others, (b) during the usual hours of the school day or otherwise, (c) at the request and upon the suggestion of the School or otherwise, (d) with the School's materials, tools, instruments, or (e) on the School's premises or otherwise.
- 3. **Return of Confidential Information.** You agree to promptly return all Confidential Information to the School upon the School's request.

- 4. **Compliance with Rules**. You agree to comply with all reasonable rules established from time to time by the School for the protection of Confidential Information.
- 5. **Disclosure to the Company of Confidential Information**. You agree to promptly and fully disclose to the School any Confidential Information that You design, create, or develop, including, without limitation, any Information which is patentable or subject to copyright protection or which may be protected as a trade secret.
- 6. Disclosure to the Government. You are permitted by federal law to disclose Confidential Information if You do so in complete confidence, either directly or indirectly, to a federal, state, or local government official or to an attorney. Such disclosure is permitted, however, solely (i) for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of applicable law; or (ii) in the context of a complaint or other document filed under seal in a lawsuit or other proceeding. This includes reports to Child Protective Services.

Appendix J - Family Commitment

For SCS to flourish as a spiritual and educational environment, we must have the full support and cooperation of both our students and their parents regarding administrative decisions and operations. Together with your enrolling child, please prayerfully and thoughtfully review the following statements and sign below:

- 1. I agree with the Core Values and Statement of Faith of SCS as outlined in the Parent-Student Handbook and in this Admission Application, and I commit to pray for SCS students, faculty and administration. I commit to following the biblical problem-solving guidelines as listed in the handbook and as discussed in Matthew 18.
- 2. Recognizing that private education requires strong parental support, I agree to regularly participate at school events, including fundraisers, as I am able. I understand that fundraisers are optional but encouraged. At any time I may choose to make a tax-deductible donation to the school in lieu of my participation in fundraisers. I may also freely choose to not participate.
- 3. I will help my child succeed by: being on time, facilitating homework, communicating properly with necessary staff/teachers, reading weekly folders and correspondence, and sending necessary materials such as forms, money, etc.
- 4. I understand our continuing admission at SCS is dependent upon the student's spiritual growth and academic progress, as well as the parents and/or student behavior and attitude that demonstrate sympathy with all SCS goals, whether academic, social, or spiritual.
- 5. For the benefit and welfare of the entire student body, I agree to adhere to SCS's policies, rules and regulations, as described in the Parent-Student Handbook, including disciplinary action.
- 6. I understand my continued enrollment is based upon a positive working relationship with Southeast Christian School leadership and staff.
- 7. I invest authority in SCS to discipline my child as necessary in accordance with the Parent-Student Handbook. I agree to cooperate with and support the school's disciplinary action regarding my child's attitude and behavior by further addressing such issues at home. Failure to abide by official school disciplinary decisions will result in loss of admission for the family.
- 8. If my child has difficulties with other students or with the school's rules of behavior, I will not register any disputes with the other student families involved, realizing such discussions could breed contention rather than resolution. Rather I will discuss the matter with the Executive Director, Principal or involved staff.
- 9. I agree that SCS has full discretion over grade placement and teacher assignments for my child.
- 10. I understand that assessments will be made to cover any damages to school property. If my child is found responsible, I agree to reimburse the school in a timely fashion.
- 11. I agree to abide by the Volunteer Code of Ethics, a copy of which is detailed in the Parent-Student Handbook.
- 12. I agree to submit a Background Screening Authorization Form every two years as required.
- 13. Volunteer Service:
 - I agree to invest 40 hours per family per year in volunteer service at SCS. I understand that I have a choice to opt out of this service and pay a volunteer fee of \$400.00. Partial completion will result in the \$400 fee being prorated at the discretion of the administration. Donations to the school are not allowed to offset the volunteer agreement.

As is currently the case, each volunteer job will be assigned a sponsoring staff person who will be the resource person for questions about the various duties, and also will provide verification of service. At no time will volunteers be solely responsible for the supervision of SCS students.

- Volunteers will abide by the Volunteer Code of Ethics, as outlined in the Parent-Student Handbook, while supporting SCS goals.
- A volunteer coordinator will keep a list of volunteer opportunities accessible on-line, and help administration oversee the program. Volunteer service opportunities can be performed during summer months and for preschool.
- I will record my volunteer hours in my family's RenWeb account.
- Volunteer service fee balances will be invoiced and sent home by the Accounting Office at the end of the school year.

I further attest that I have full authority as parent and legal guardian of the above child to enter into this agreement. I understand that it is my responsibility to inform the school of any address or contact information change for our family or those listed as contacts on any forms submitted to the school.

I agree to and commit to following the above.

Appendix K - Technology Use Agreement Acknowledgement

I/We hereby agree to comply with the terms and conditions described in Appendix B of the SCS Parent-Student Handbook and if a parent or guardian, hereby consent to my child's or ward's use of Southeast Christian School IT resources. I/We understand that this form applies to my child or ward for the entire time he/she is enrolled at Southeast Christian School.

I/We further understand that violation of the regulations is unethical and may constitute a criminal offense. Should my child or ward commit any violation, access privileges may be revoked, school disciplinary action and/or appropriate legal action may be taken.

I have read and consent to the G Suite for Education Notice to Parents and Guardians. If you don't provide your consent, we will not create a G Suite for Education account for your child.

I give permission for Southeast Christian School to create/maintain a G Suite for Education account for my child and for Google to collect, use, and disclose information about my child only for the purposes described in the notice.

I acknowledge that I have read and understand the foregoing Google Suite for Education Agreement, and agree to comply with all of the terms of the Agreement, and that I have received a copy of the Agreement.

Appendix L - STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT

SCS Biblical Code of Conduct for STUDENTS

Southeast Christian School believes it is important to be clear to our students regarding the expectation to uphold high standards of Biblical conduct, both professionally and personally. SCS has adopted the following Biblical Code of Conduct which we expect our students to uphold:

- 1. I will conduct my personal life and personal affairs in a way that will not bring shame or reproach to the name of the Lord, Southeast Christian School, or its staff and families. Rather, I will speak to bring glory and pleasure to God and encourage others to do likewise (1 Peter 1:14-16, 2:12, 4:11).
- 2. I will speak the truth in love (Ephesians 4:1-16).
- 3. I will recognize and respect what the Lord is doing through other individuals and organizations while refraining from unnecessary criticism of them (1 Peter 3:8-9).
- 4. I will not knowingly speak falsely against anyone (Exodus 20:16).
- 5. I will live in peace with all those around me to the extent that is within my ability (Romans 12:18).
- 6. I will show commitment to a work ethic that honors God and pursues excellence (Colossians 3:23-24).
- 7. I will refrain from any sexual conduct or lifestyle which is inconsistent with Scripture, or any promotion of the same (Romans 1:24-32; Genesis 19; Leviticus 18:22; Exodus 20:14; John 8:1-11).
- 8. I will practice sacrificial giving of my time, talents, and treasure to the church I weekly attend (2 Corinthians 9:7).
- 9. When I believe a fellow student has sinned against me or against God, or has violated this Biblical Code of Conduct, I will follow the principles and procedures set forth in Scripture found in Matthew 18:15-17.
- 10. I will dress in conformance with my biological sex as defined at birth (Genesis 1:26-28).
- 11. I will only use the restrooms, locker rooms, and changing facilities conforming with my biological sex as defined at birth (Genesis 1:26-28).
- 12. I will abstain from all intimate sexual conduct outside the marital union of one man and one woman. (Leviticus 18:22; 1 Corinthians 6:18)
- 13. I will commit to following the guidelines and expectations regarding cheating, stealing, respect for authority, et.al as defined in the parent-student handbook.